OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE



SKATING SKATING

OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

2018 OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES FIGURE SKATING SCHEDULE

ALL TIMES LOCAL (EASTERN TIME IN PARENTHESES)

DATE	EVENT	TIME
Feb. 9, 2018	Team Men's Short	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 8)
Feb. 9, 2018	Team Pairs Short	11:45 a.m. (9:45 p.m. Feb. 8)
Feb. 11, 2018	Team Short Dance	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 10)
Feb. 11, 2018	Team Ladies Short	11:45 a.m. (9:45 p.m. Feb. 10)
Feb. 11, 2018	Team Pairs Free	1:40 p.m. (11:40 p.m. Feb. 10)
Feb. 12, 2018	Team Men's Free	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 11)
Feb. 12, 2018	Team Ladies Free	11:10 a.m. (9:10 p.m. Feb. 11)
Feb. 12, 2018 (Medal Event)	Team Free Dance	12:20 p.m. (10:20 p.m. Feb. 11)
Feb. 14, 2018	Pairs Short	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 13)
Feb. 15, 2018 (Medal Event)	Pairs Free	10:30 a.m. (8:30 p.m. Feb. 14)
Feb. 16, 2018	Men's Short	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 15)
Feb. 17, 2018 (Medal Event)	Men's Free	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 16)
Feb. 19, 2018	Short Dance	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 18)
Feb. 20, 2018 (Medal Event)	Free Dance	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 19)
Feb. 21, 2018	Ladies Short	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 20)
Feb. 23, 2018 (Medal Event)	Ladies Free	10 a.m. (8 p.m. Feb. 22)
Feb. 25, 2018	Exhibition	11 a.m. (9 p.m. Feb. 24)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

U.S. Figure Skating Staff	
U.S. Figure Skating Fact Sheet	
International Judging System (IJS)5	
2018 Olympic Winter Games12	
Coaches	
Karen Chen	
Mirai Nagasu	
Bradie Tennell	
Nathan Chen	
Adam Rippon20	
Vincent Zhou	
Alexa Scimeca-Knierim/Chris Knierim	
Madison Chock/Evan Bates	
Madison Hubbell/Zachary Donohue26	
Maia Shibutani/Alex Shibutani	
U.S. Olympic Gold Medalists	
U.S. Figure Skating Record Book31	
Olympic Winter Games Medalists	
Olympic Winter Games – U.S. Finishers	

CREDITS & DISCLAIMER The 2018 U.S. Figure Skating Olympic media guide was compiled and edited by U.S. Figure Skating's Marketing and Communications Department. Photos were provided by Getty Images, Jay Adeff, NBC Olympics/USOC and the World Figure Skating Museum and Hall of Fame.

COPYRIGHT © 2018 BY U.S. FIGURE SKATING ISBN: 0-9764455-5-7

All rights reserved. No part of this book shall be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted by any means without written permission from the author. Printed in the USA. The U.S. Figure Skating logo is a trademark of the United States Figure Skating Association. All rights reserved.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

U.S. FIGURE SKATING STAFF



SORA HWANG Coordinator, Communications Cell: 201.575.9098

shwang@usfigureskating.org



MIMI MCKINNIS Manager, Communications Cell: 405.474.3235

mmckinnis@usfigureskating.org



Primary Contact

MICHAEL TERRY

Manager, Communications Cell: 404.790.6453

mterry@usfigureskating.org



JOY ANDERSON Physical Therapist



SAMUEL AUXIER President



RAMSEY BAKER Chief Marketing Officer



INGRID BENSON Manager, Athlete High Performance Administrator and Logistics



JUSTIN DILLON Director, High Performance Development



DR. PETER GERBINO Team Physician



TINA LUNDGREN Team Manager (singles/pairs)



JENNY MAST Team Manager (ice dance)



MITCH MOYER Team Leader/Sr. Director, Athlete High Performance



DAVID RAITH Executive Director



LAURA ROBERTS Coordinator, Team USA



PETER ZAPALO Director, Sports Science & Medicine



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

U.S. FIGURE SKATING FACT SHEET

ABOUT U.S. FIGURE SKATING

20 First Street - Colorado Springs, CO 80906

T: 719.635.5200 - F: 719.635.9548

President: Samuel Auxier

Executive Director: David Raith

U.S. Figure Skating is the national governing body for the sport of figure skating as recognized by the U.S. Olympic Committee and International Skating Union. The headquarters and administrative offices are in Colorado Springs, Colo., as are SKATING magazine, the official publication of U.S. Figure Skating, and the U.S. and World Figure Skating Museum and Hall of Fame.

U.S. Figure Skating is charged with the development of the sport on all levels in the United States, including developing athletes and officials, sanctioning events and exhibitions, and establishing the rules and guidelines by which the sport is governed.

ABOUT THE SPORT

Figure skating is comprised of five disciplines: ladies, men's, pairs, ice dance and synchronized. The first four are contested at the Olympic Winter Games

TEAM USA

More than 100 athletes make up Team USA in ladies, men's, pairs and ice dance for the 2017-18 season. The athletes will represent the United States at more than 30 international competitions while receiving funding and support to pursue excellence in the sport of figure skating.

Fourteen athletes will represent Team USA at the Olympic Winter Games PyeongChang 2018: Three ladies, three men, one pairs team and three ice dance teams.

TELEVISION CONTRACT

In January 2013, U.S. Figure Skating announced two major media rights agreements that guarantee unprecedented coverage of figure skating in the United States through the 2018

Sports

Olympic season. The first was a four-year extension of its broadcast rights agreement with NBC and the second was icenetwork's acquisition of all U.S. media rights for International Skating Union (ISU) events through the 2017-18 season.

Through 2018, NBC Sports will broadcast a minimum of 11 hours of live domestic event coverage, including Skate America and the U.S. Figure Skating Championships. During the 2017-18 season, more than 225 hours of skating will air between broadcasts on NBC, NBCSN and the Olympic Channel.

The ISU agreement with icenetwork, a wholly-owned subsidiary of U.S. Figure Skating, operated and managed by MLB Advanced Media (MLBAM), covers multiple distribution platforms and guarantees live coverage of ISU events, including the World Figure Skating Championships, the Four Continents Championships and the Grand Prix of Figure Skating Series, on icenetwork, as well as television coverage on NBC, NBC Sports Network and the Olympic Channel Approximately 20 hours of icenetwork's ISU figure skating rights will be shown on NBC annually, including the World Championships in primetime during non-Olympic years.

OTHER IMPORTANT WEBSITES

Organization / Website

U.S. Figure Skating / USFigureSkating.org

icenetwork / icenetwork.com

International Olympic Committee (IOC) / Olympic.org

International Skating Union (ISU) / isu.org

U.S. Olympic Committee (USOC) (Media site) / www.USOCPressBox.org

U.S. Olympic Committee (USOC) (Public site) / TeamUSA.org

World Figure Skating Museum and Hall of Fame / WorldSkatingMuseum.org

U.S. Figure Skating Online Store / ShopUSFigureSkating.com

U.S. Figure Skating Fan Zone / USFigureSkatingFanZone.com

Learn to Skate USA / LearnToSkateUSA.com follow us Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, YouTube: / USFigureSkating



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

INTERNATIONAL JUDGING SYSTEM (IJS)

ISU USAGE OF THE IJS

At the 50th ISU Congress in Scheveningen, The Netherlands, held in June 2004, the international judging system (IJS) received the two-thirds vote needed to pass, marking the end of the 6.0 system's usage at ISU events.

The system was first tested behind the scenes at various events during the 2002–03 season (the first event to officially use it was the 2003 Nebelhorn Trophy). Adjustments and clarifications have been made throughout the years based on feedback from athletes, coaches and officials.

INTERNATIONAL JUDGING SYSTEM PROGRESS

2002-03 Test events

2003–04 Grand Prix (GP) events

2004–05 All ISU championship events, GP and Junior Grand Prix (JGP)

2005-06 All ISU events

ISU member nations are free to use the system of their choice at national events.

U.S. FIGURE SKATING USAGE

In May 2005, the U.S. Figure Skating Governing Council voted to approve the IJS for use in U.S. Figure Skating qualifying competitions.

The 6.0 judging system has been retained, as necessary, for competitions. At nonqualifying competitions, either the international judging system or the 6.0 judging system may be used at the discretion of the local organizing committee, with a few restrictions.

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN ISU AND U.S. FIGURE SKATING USAGE OF THE IJS

In all U.S. Figure Skating, ISU and international competitions, the judges' names appear next to their scores

Should a numerical anomaly become apparent at an ISU senior event, it is addressed by the ISU's

Officials Assessment Commission (OAC). Once an assessment is reached, the name of the official is announced by an independent third party.

Should a judge's score be contested at a U.S. Figure Skating event, the chief referee submits a report to a committee for examination and assessment

OVERVIEW OF THE IJS

The international judging system is based on cumulative points. Points are awarded for the technical evaluation of the elements combined with points awarded for five program components:

- skating skills
- transitions
- performance
- composition
- interpretation of the music/timing (for ice dance)

In the IJS, if a skater performs more than the defined "well-balanced program" elements, there are no deductions, but the skater will not receive credit for these additional elements (except in ice dance, where there is a 1.0 point deduction for each additional element). If a skater performs fewer elements than required, they receive fewer points, but no reduction in points. Essentially, the IJS rewards skaters for strong performances rather than punishing them for poor performances.

Technical panel officials work as a team to determine the type and difficulty of elements performed by each skater. The judges then independently evaluate the qualities of the elements and the performance as a whole.

Each skater is judged independently from the other competitors, so starting order does not impact a skater's score. Also, placement after the short program is not as important as the point differential between the skaters, so placing low in one segment is not necessarily a bar to winning an event.

	TOP U.S. SCORES — 2017 WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS											
	NAME	SHC	SHORT PROGRAM			FREE SKATE						
	NAME	TES	PCS	TSS	TES	PCS	TSS	TOTAL				
LADIES	Karen Chen	38.35	31.63	69.98 (5)	65.98	64.33	129.31 (6)	199.29 (4)				
MEN'S	Nathan Chen	55.22	43.11	97.33 (6)	110.61	84.78	193.39 (4)	290.72 (6)				
PAIRS	Alexa Scimeca- Knierim & Chris Knierim	40.74	31.43	72.17 (8)	66.33	63.87	130.20 (11)	202.37 (10)				
	NAME	SHORT DANCE				TOTAL						
	NAME	TES	PCS	TSS	TES	PCS	TSS	IOIAL				
ICE DANCE	Madison Hubbell & Zachary Dono- hue	40.47	36.06	76.53 (3)								
	Maia Shibutani & Alex Shibutani					55.45	55.85	185.18 (3)				



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

INTERNATIONAL JUDGING SYSTEM (IJS)

JUDGES AND OFFICIALS

Skaters are evaluated by a judging panel and a technical panel. The judging panel consists of judges and the referee. The technical panel consists of the technical controller, technical specialist, assistant technical specialist, data operator and video replay operator.

JUDGES

The judges are responsible for evaluating the quality of the technical elements and program components.

REFEREE

The referee is in charge of the event. The referee manages the panel of judges and fulfills certain responsibilities, including setting the schedule, conducting draws, determining certain deductions and deciding protests or disputes.

TECHNICAL CONTROLLER

The technical controller supervises, confirms and authorizes all decisions executed by the technical panel. This individual may question the accuracy of the technical specialists' calls by calling for a review. The final decision is arrived at by a majority vote of the technical specialist, the assistant technical specialist and the technical controller after the element is reviewed and further analyzed at the conclusion of the skater's performance. The technical controller must also confirm that all calls have been accurately entered by the data operator.

The elements are available for review after a skater's performance, and scores can be changed accordingly. Review is over and scores are final once they are posted and announced to the public. These scores can only change if a calculation error is found.

TECHNICAL SPECIALIST AND ASSISTANT TECHNICAL SPECIALIST

These individuals are responsible for identifying each of the executed technical elements and the levels of difficulty of each element in real time according to specific criteria. These individuals also must identify illegal elements and falls.

DATA OPERATOR AND VIDEO REPLAY OPERATOR

The data operator inputs the called elements, the levels of difficulty and falls. The video replay operator is responsible for recording all called elements on video clips for use in the review process.

TECHNICAL EVALUATION

In the technical evaluation, each element of a skater's program is assigned a base value. A group of experts, including experienced skaters and coaches, have determined the base value of each technical element. These element base values give the skaters credit for every element they perform. Some elements, such as spins and step sequences, have been assigned a level of difficulty according to specific criteria. These elements are assigned their base value depending on the level of difficulty.

The quality of each element is marked by the judges using a seven-mark "grade of execution" (GOE) scale: -3, -2, -1, 0, +1, +2, +3. The judges' grade of execution is added to or subtracted from the base value of the element to determine the skater's score for that element.

When a skater executes an element, the technical specialist, monitored by the technical controller, identifies the element, and it is then listed on the judge's screen. The judge then grades the quality of the element.

EXAMPLE

Skater performs a triple Axel

Base Value = 8.5

GOE = +2

Element Score = 10.5

Since a triple Axel's base value is 8.5, a skater has the potential to earn 11.5 points for that jump, or as little as 2.9. The sum of all performed elements, together with their grades of execution, forms the technical score.

EXTRAS

- In the ladies and men's short program and free skate, the base values for all jumps skated in the second half of the program are multiplied by 1.1.
- A skater's program consists of a set number of jumps, spins and step sequences. Skaters exceeding the number of opportunities do not get credit for the additional element, but may run the risk of deductions if a fall occurs. In ice dance only, skaters receive a 1.0 deduction for each extra element performed beyond the maximum allowed.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

INTERNATIONAL JUDGING SYSTEM (IJS)

PROGRAM COMPONENTS

In addition to the technical evaluation, the judges award points on a scale from 0.25 to 10.00, with increments of 0.25, for each program component to express the overall presentation.

For pairs skating and ice dance, there must be equal demonstration of the criteria by both skaters.

These five components are scored for all disciplines and events:

SKATING SKILLS

Defined by overall cleanness and sureness, edge control and flow over the ice surface demonstrated by a command of the skating vocabulary (edges, steps, turns etc.), the clarity of technique and the use of effortless power to accelerate and vary speed.

In evaluating the Skating Skills, the following must be considered:

- · Use of deep edges, steps and turns;
- Balance, rhythmic knee action and precision of foot placement;
- · Flow and glide;
- · Varied use of power, speed and acceleration;
- · Use of multi-directional skating;
- · Use of one-foot skating.

TRANSITIONS

The varied and purposeful use of intricate footwork, positions, movements and holds that link all elements.

In evaluating the Transitions, the following must be considered:

- Continuity of movements from one element to another (all disciplines);
- · Variety (including variety of holds in ice dance);
- · Difficulty;
- · Quality.

PERFORMANCE

Involvement of the skater/pair/couple physically, emotionally and intellectually as they deliver the intent of the music and composition.

In evaluating the Performance, the following must be considered:

- Physical, emotional intellectual involvement and projection;
- · Carriage and clarity of movement;

- Variety and contrast of movements and energy;
- Individuality / personality;
- Unison and "oneness" (pair skating, ice dance);
- Spatial awareness between partners management of the distance between skaters and management of changes of hold (pair skating, ice dance).

COMPOSITION

An intentionally developed and/or original arrangement of all types of movements according to the principles of musical phrase, space, pattern and structure.

In evaluating the Composition, the following must be considered:

- · Purpose (idea, concept, vision, mood);
- · Pattern / ice coverage;
- Multidimensional use of space and design of movements;
- Phrase and form (movements and parts structured to match the musical phrase);
- · Originality of the composition;

INTERPRETATION OF THE MUSIC/TIMING (ICE DANCE)

The personal, creative, and genuine translation of the rhythm, character and content of music to movement on ice.

In evaluating the Interpretation of the Music (/ Timing), the following must be considered:

- Movement and steps in time to the music (Timing);
- Expression of the music's character / feeling and rhythm, when clearly identifiable;
- Use of finesse* to reflect the details and nuances of the music;
- Relationship between the skaters reflecting the character and rhythm of the music (pair skating, ice dance);
- Skating primarily to the rhythmic beat for short dance and keeping a good balance between skating to the beat and melody in the free dance (ice dance).
- Finesse is the skater's refined, artful manipulation of nuances. Nuances are the personal artistic ways of bringing subtle variations to the intensity, tempo and dynamics of the music.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

INTERNATIONAL JUDGING SYSTEM (IJS)

CALCULATIONS

CALCULATING THE TOTAL ELEMENT SCORE (TES)

- 1. Each technical element has a base point value.
- 2. Each judge assigns a GOE for each element from a seven-point scale: -3, -2, -1, 0, +1, +2, +3.
- 3. Among the judges, the highest and lowest GOE is dropped.
- 4. The remaining GOEs are averaged. This is called the "trimmed mean."
- 5. The trimmed mean GOE is added to the base value
- 6. All technical element scores are added.
- 7. Deductions are taken.

CALCULATING THE PROGRAM COMPONENTS SCORE (PCS)

- Each judge assigns a mark to each of the five program components on a scale of 0.25-10.00, using 0.25 increments.
- Among the judges, the highest and lowest score for each program component is dropped.
- The remaining scores are averaged. This is called the "trimmed mean."
- 4. The trimmed mean scores of the five program components are added.
- 5. The sum of the components is multiplied by the appropriate factor. *Why?* See below:

*The program components are factored to make the perfect PCS level with the perfect TES, hence granting equal importance to each. Since the perfect PCS score is 50, this number is factored to roughly equal what each discipline is capable of scoring in the TES. For example, in the ladies short program, women today are capable of scoring around 40 in the TES. So the PCS is factored by 0.8, lowering the 50 to a 40.

SENIOR & JUNIOR							
SHORT PROG.	FREE SKATE						
0.8	1.6						
1.0	2.0						
0.8	1.6						
0.8	1.2						
	0.8 1.0 0.8						

CALCULATING THE FINAL COMPETITION SCORE

- 1. TES + PCS (factored) = Segment Score (TSS)
- The sum of all segment scores (for example, short program + free skate) is the total competition score. No segment scores are weighted. They are simply added together cumulatively to reach the competition score.
- The skater with the highest competition score is declared the winner.

For more information on the IJS, visit www.usfigureskating.org.

Technical Score (TES)
+ Program Components (PCS) (Factored)

Segment Score

LADIES, MEN'S AND PAIRS

Short Program Segment Score + Free Skate Segment Score

Competition Score

ICE DANCE

Short Dance Segment Score + Free Dance Segment Score

Competition Score



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

INTERNATIONAL JUDGING SYSTEM (IJS)

SCALE OF VALUES (SOV)

The scale of values (SOV) assigns a specific base value to each technical element reflective of its difficulty. A group of experts, including experienced skaters and coaches, determined the base values for each element, most of which are listed below.

Triple Lutz

Triple Axel

Quad Toe Loop

Quad Salchow

Quad Loop

Quad Flip

Quad Lutz

Quad Axel

During a skating performance, the technical specialist identifies each technical element for the judging panel by "calling" the element the skater performs.

The called element receives the base value listed below. The judge then evaluates the quality of that element by giving it a grade of execution (GOE).

Jump and throw elements include one base value, one V value and, in some cases, one V1 value. Non-jump elements have five levels for singles, pairs and step sequences in ice dance (LB, L1, L2, L3, L4) and four levels for

SINGLES AND PAIRS JUMPS ELEMENT CODE SOV V V1 Double Toe Loop 2T 1.3 Double Salchow 2S 1.3 0.9 Double Loop 2Lo 1.8 1.3 Double Flip 2F 1.9 1.4 1.3 Double Lutz 2Lz 2.1 1.5 1.4 3.3 Double Axel 2Δ 23 _ Triple Toe Loop 3T 4.3 3.0 Triple Salchow 3S 4.4 3.1 Triple Loop 3Lo 5.1 3.6 3.7 3.2 Triple Flip 3F 5.3

3Lz

3A 8.5 5.9

4T | 10.3 | 8.0

4S | 10.5 | 8.1

4Lo | 12.0 | 8.4

4Lz | 13.6 | 9.5 | 8.4

4A | 15.0 | 10.5

6.0 | 4.2 | 3.6

12.3 8.6

8.0

all other elements in ice dance (L1, L2, L3, L4) that correlate with five or four base values, respectively, and, in some cases, a V value. The values and levels are determined by edges used, number of rotations, etc. A judge still must determine a GOE for whichever element and level is called.

PAIRS	THROV	/S	
ELEMENTS	CODE	sov	٧
Double Toe Loop	2TTh	2.5	1.8
Double Salchow	2STh	2.5	1.8
Double Loop	2LoTh	2.8	2.0
Double Flip	2FTh	3.0	2.1
Double Lutz	2LzTh	3.0	2.1
Double Axel	2ATh	4.0	2.8
Triple Toe Loop	3TTh	4.5	3.2
Triple Salchow	3STh	4.5	3.2
Triple Loop	3LoTh	5.0	3.5
Triple Flip	3FTh	5.5	3.9
Triple Lutz	3LzTh	5.5	3.9
Triple Axel	3ATh	7.7	5.4
Quad Toe Loop	4TTh	8.2	5.7
Quad Salchow	4STh	8.2	5.7
Quad Loop	4LoTh	8.7	6.1
Quad Flip	4FTh	9.0	6.3
Quad Lutz	4LzTh	9.0	6.3

SINGLES AND PAIRS SPINS AND STEP SEQUENCES									
ELEMENT	CODE	LB (V)	L1 (V)	L2 (V)	L3 (V)	L4 (V)			
Upright Spin	USp	1.0	1.2	1.5	1.9	2.4			
Layback Spin	LSp	1.2	1.5	1.9	2.4	2.7			
Camel Spin	CSp	1.1	1.4	1.8	2.3	2.6			
Sit Spin	SSp	1.1	1.3	1.6	2.1	2.5			
Upright Spin w/ Flying Entry	FUSp	1.5 (1.1)	1.7 (1.2)	2.0 (1.4)	2.4 (1.7)	2.9 (2.0)			
Layback Spin w/ Flying Entry	FLSp	1.7 (1.2)	2.0 (1.4)	2.4 (1.7)	2.9 (2.0)	3.2 (2.2)			
Camel Spin w/ Flying Entry	FCSp	1.6 (1.1)	1.9 (1.3)	2.3 (1.6)	2.8 (2.0)	3.2 (2.2)			
Sit Spin w/ Flying Entry	FSSp	1.7 (1.2)	2.0 (1.4)	2.3 (1.6)	2.6 (1.8)	3.0 (2.1)			
Upright Spin w/Change of Foot	CUSp	1.5 (1.1)	1.7 (1.2)	2.0 (1.4)	2.4 (1.7)	2.9 (2.0)			
Layback Spin w/Change of Foot	CLSP	1.7 (1.2)	2.0 (1.4)	2.4 (1.7)	2.9 (2.0)	3.2 (2.2)			
Camel Spin w/ Change of Foot	CCSp	1.7 (1.2)	2.0 (1.4)	2.3 (1.6)	2.8 (2.0)	3.2 (2.2)			
Sit Spin w/ Change of Foot	CSSp	1.6 (1.1)	1.9 (1.3)	2.3 (1.6)	2.6 (1.8)	3.0 (2.1)			
Combo Spin w/ no Change of Foot	CoSp	1.5 (1.1)	1.7 (1.3)	2.0 (1.5)	2.5 (1.8)	3.0 (2.1)			
Combo Spin w/ Change of Foot	CCoSp	1.7 (1.5)	2.0 (1.7)	2.5 (2.0)	3.0 (2.5)	3.5 (3.0)			
Step Sequence	StSq	1.5	1.8	2.6	3.3	3.9			
Choreographic Sequence	ChSq	2.0		-	-	-			



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

INTERNATIONAL JUDGING SYSTEM (IJS)

PAIRS LIFTS, DEATH SPIRALS, PAIRS SPINS AND TWIST LIFTS										
ELEMENT	CODE	LB (V)	L1 (V)	L2 (V)	L3 (V)	L4 (V)				
Group 1 Lift	1Li	1.0	1.1	1.3	1.5	1.7				
Group 2 Lift	2Li	1.1	1.6	1.9	2.4	3.0				
Group 3/Group 4 Lifts	3Li/4Li	2.5	3.0	3.5	4.0	4.5				
Group 5 Lift — Toe and Step In	5TLi/SLi	4.5	5.0	5.5	6.0	6.5				
Group 5 Lift — Backward Lasso	5BLi	5.0	5.5	6.0	6.5	7.0				
Group 5 Lift — Axel and Reverse Lasso	5ALi/5RLi	5.5	6.0	6.5	7.0	7.5				
Forward Inside/Backward Inside Death Spiral	FiDs/BiDs	2.6	2.8	3.0	3.2	3.5				
Forward Outside/Backward Outside Death Spiral	FoDs/BoDs	2.8	3.0	3.5	4.0	4.5				
Pairs Spin	PSp	1.7	2.0	2.5	3.0	3.5				
Pairs Spin Combination	PCoSp	2.5 (1.8)	3.0 (2.1)	3.5 (2.5)	4.0 (3.0)	4.5 (3.5)				
Single Twist Lift	1Tw	0.9	1.1	1.3	1.5	1.7				
Double Twist Lift	2Tw	2.9	3.1	3.4	3.7	4.0				
Triple Twist Lift	3Tw	5.0	5.4	5.8	6.2	6.6				
Quad Twist Lift	4Tw	7.0	7.5	8.0	8.6	9.1				

ICE DANCE SPINS, TWIZZLES, LIFTS AND STEP SEQUENCES										
ELEMENTS	CODE	LB	L1	L2	L3	L4				
Spin/Spin Combination	Sp/CoSp	-	2.6	3.6	4.6	5.6				
Choreographic Spinning Movement	ChSp	1.0	-	-	-	-				
Set of Twizzles	STw	-	3.1	4.6	5.6	6.6				
Choreographic Twizzling Movement	ChTw	1.0	-	-	-	-				
Stationary Lift / Straight Line Lift	StaLi/SILi	-	2.0	3.0	4.0	4.5				
Curve Lift / Rotational Lift	CuLi/RoLi	-	2.0	3.0	4.0	4.5				
Choreographic Dance Lift	ChLi	1.0	-	-	-	-				
Step Sequences in Hold: Diagonal/Midline/Circular/Serpentine	DiSt/MiSt/CiSt/SeSt	2.6	4.1	5.6	7.1	8.6				
Step Sequences Not Touching: Diagonal/Midline/Circular/Serpentine	NtDiSt/NtMiSt/NtCiSt/NTSeSt	2.6	4.1	5.6	7.1	8.6				
Rhumba Sequence 1	1RH	-	3.2	3.8	4.4	5.0				
Pattern Dance Type Step Sequence	PSt	2.6	4.1	5.6	7.1	8.6				

JUMPS

- Full rotation: signs < and << indicate an error.
 <p>The base values of the jumps with a sign < are listed in the column V of the SOV table. The jump with a sign << is evaluated with SOV for the same jump one revolution less.</p>
- 2) Correct take-off edge in F/Lz: signs "e" and "!" indicate an error. The base values of the jumps with the sign "e" are listed in the column V of the SOV table. A jump with the sign "!" keeps the full original base value of the jump. If both signs < and "e" are applied for the same jump, the base values are listed in the column VI of the SOV table.</p>

JUMPS (PAIRS)

Both partners must fulfill requirements above (with the same consequences if these requirements are not fulfilled).

SPINS

For flying spins (with no change of foot and only one position) in both the short program and free skate, a clear visible jump is required. The sign "V" indicates that this requirement is not fulfilled. The base values of spins with the sign "V" are listed in parentheticals in the applicable columns of the SOV table. The base values of spin combinations and pair spin combinations with only two basic positions (at least two revolutions in each of these positions) are also reflected in parentheticals in the applicable columns of the SOV tables.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

INTERNATIONAL JUDGING SYSTEM (IJS)

SAMPLE PROTOCOL ASHLEY WAGNER — FREE SKATE 2016 WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS — BOSTON

R	Rank Name		Nation		tarting umber	Segr	otal nent core	Elem	tal ent ore	Pro		Total omponent (factored)	De	Total eductions		
	2 Ashley WAGNER				USA		24	14	2.23	68	.45			73.78		0.00
#	Executed Elements	Info	Base Value	GOE					Judges random o						Ref	Scores of Panel
1	2A		3.30	1.00	2	2	1	2	2	3	2	2	2			4.30
2	3F+3T<	<	8.30	-0.40	0	-1	0	-1	-1	0	1	-1	-1			7.90
3	2A+2T		4.60	0.71	2	2	1	2	1	1	2	1	1			5.31
4	FSSp4		3.00	0.93	2	2	1	2	2	2	1	2	2			3.93
5	CCoSp3p4		3.50	0.86	2	1	1	2	2	2	1	2	2			4.36
6	3Lo+1Lo+3S		11.00 x	1.20	2	1	1	2	1	2	3	2	2			12.20
7	3F<	<	4.07 x	-1.30	-3	-2	-2	-1	-2	-1	-2	-2	-2			2.77
8	3Lo		5.61 x	1.40	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2			7.01
9	StSq4		3.90	1.70	2	2	3	2	2	3	2	3	3			5.60
10	3Lz	!	6.60 x	0.30	0	-1	0	1	0	1	1	1	0			6.90
11	ChSq1		2.00	1.60	2	2	3	2	2	3	2	2	3			3.60
12	FCCoSp3p4		3.50	1.07	1	2	3	2	2	2	2	3	2			4.57
			59.38													68.45
	Program Components			Factor												
	Skating Skills			1.60	9.00	8.75	8.75	9.50	8.50	9.25	9.50	9.50	8.75			9.07
	Transition / Linking Footwork			1.60	8.75	8.25	8.75	9.25	8.25	9.50	9.25	9.00	8.75			8.86
	Performance / Execution			1.60	8.50	9.25	9.25	9.25	8.75	9.75	9.75	9.50	9.75			9.36
	Choreography / Composition			1.60	9.50	9.00	9.25	9.50	8.75	10.00	9.50	9.00	9.50			9.32
	Interpretation			1.60	9.75	9.00	9.50	9.50	9.00	10.00	9.75	9.50	9.50			9.50
	Judges Total Program Component Scor	e (factored)														73.78
	Deductions:															0.00

Under-rotated jump x Credit for highlight distribution, base value multiplied by 1.1 ! Not clear ed

KEY

Executed Elements

- 1. 2A = Double Axel
- 2. 3F+3T = Triple flip-triple toe loop done in combination (< = Under rotated)
- 3. 2A+2T = Double Axel-double toe loop done in combination
- 4. FSSp4 = Level 4 sit spin with flying entry
- 5. CCoSp3p4 = Level 4 combination spin with a change of foot (three positions)
- 6. 3Lo+1Lo+3S = Triple loop-single loop-triple Salchow done in combination
- 7. 3F = Triple flip (< = Under rotated)
- 8. 3Lo = Triple loop
- 9. StSq4 = Level 4 step sequence
- 10. 3Lz = Triple Lutz (! = Takeoff edge not clear)
- 11. ChSq1 = Level 1 choreographic sequence
- 12. FCCoSp3p4 = Level 4 combination spin with flying camel spin entry (three positions)

x = Element performed in the second half of a skater's program. The base value is multiplied by 1.1. GOE = Each element is marked by the judges using a seven-mark "grade of execution" (GOE) scale: -3, -2,

-1, 0, +1, +2, +3. The judges' grade of execution is added to the base value of the element to determine the skater's score for that element (explained on Page 13).

Program components = In addition to the technical evaluation, the judges award points on a scale from 0.25 to 10.00, with increments of 0.25 for each program component to express the overall presentation. (explained on Page 14)





Maia Shibutani, Madison Chock. Back Row (left to right): Alexa Scimeca-Knierim, Karen Chen, Mirai Nagasu, Bradie Tennell, Madison Hubbell, Maia Shibutani, Madison Chock. Back Row (left to right): Chris Knierim, Adam Rippon, Vincent Zhou, Nathan Chen, Zachary Donohue, Alex Shibutani, Evan Bates

OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

2018 OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES

2018 OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES

PLACE: PyeongChang, South Korea

DATES: Feb. 9-25, 2018

OVERVIEW

PyeongChang, South Korea, was selected July 6, 2011, as the host of the 2018 Olympic Winter Games. Based on the results of the 2017 World

Based on the results of the 2017 World Championships in Helsinki, Finland, Team USA is eligible to send a total of 10 entries (10 athletes: 3 ladies, 3 men, 1 pair, 3 ice dance) to compete at the 2018 Olympic Games.

COMPETITION VENUE

Gangneung Ice Arena Gangwon-do Gangneung-si Gyo-dong 468-42 South Korea www.pyeongchang2018.com

AGE ELIGIBILITY

All competitors must be 15 years old by July 1, 2017, to be eligible for the 2018 Olympic Winter Games.

U.S. TEAM — ATHLETE SELECTION

The athlete selection procedure for the 2018 Olympic Winter Games is as follows:

The 2018 U.S. Olympic Figure Skating Team will be selected following the conclusion of the 2018 Prudential U.S. Figure Skating Championships, Dec. 29, 2017 - Jan. 7, 2018, in San Jose, California. Team members will be selected by U.S. Figure Skating's International Committee, taking into consideration the results of events in the following order of importance:

2018 Prudential U.S. Figure Skating Championships 2017 ISU Grand Prix of Figure Skating Final 2017 ISU World Figure Skating Championships 2017 ISU Grand Prix of Figure Skating events 2017 Four Continents Championships 2017 Prudential U.S. Figure Skating Championships 2017 World Junior Figure Skating Championships 2017 ISU Junior Grand Prix of Figure Skating Final

Skaters who do not compete at these events due to injury or illness, but who meet the other criteria, may also be considered for selection.



PyeongChang 2018



HISTORY OF THE OLYMPICS

The earliest recorded Olympic Games were held at Olympia in ancient Greece in 776 B.C. This tradition took place every four years for 1,000 years.

The modern Olympic Movement started in 1894 when French educator, Pierre de Coubertin, brought together a group of sports and philosophy leaders from around the world for the International Athletic Congress. The group, which later became the International Olympic Committee (IOC), unanimously decided to revive the ancient Games. In 1896, the first modern Olympic Games were held in Athens, Greece, their country of origin.

The first winter sport included in the Olympic Games was figure skating in 1908. The first Olympic Winter Games were staged in Chamonix, France, in 1924, where 294 athletes from 16 nations took part in 14 events.

At the 2010 Olympic Winter Games in Vancouver, 2,566 (1044 women, 1522 men) from more than 82

Team USA	
LADIES	
Karen Chen	
Mirai Nagasu	
Bradie Tennell	
MEN	
Nathan Chen	
Adam Rippon	
Vincent Zhou	
PAIRS	
Alexa Scimeca-Knierim/Chris Knierim	
ICE DANCING	
Madison Chock/Evan Bates	
Madison Hubbell/Zachary Donohue	
Maia Shibutani/Alex Shibutani	



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

2018 OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES

nations competed in 86 different events. Nearly 10,000 members of the media attended the event (journalists, agencies, photographers, radio and television).

OLYMPIC TEAM EVENT

The 2018 Olympic Winter Games will feature the figure skating team event. Each member of the U.S. Olympic Figure Skating Team is eligible to compete in the team event.

U.S. Figure Skating will work with athletes/ coaches to determine if the athlete will participate. Per ISU rules, the figure skating team event men's and pairs short program nominations must be received by 10 a.m. PyeongChang time on Feb. 8. Nominations for the ladies short program and short dance must be received by 10 a.m. PyeongChang time on Feb. 10. Nominations for the pairs free skate must be received by 1:15 p.m. PyeongChang time on Feb. 11. All other free skate/dance nominations must be received by 3:30 p.m. PyeongChang time on Feb. 11.

Each team will consist of one woman, one man, one pairs team and one ice dance team to be selected from athletes who have qualified in their individual disciplines. Each team, however, will be allowed to make up to two exchanges after the short program/dance.

The team event will consist of the 10 best national teams from NOCs/ISU members. The five teams with the highest number of points after the short program/dance will qualify for the free skate/dance. In the team event, athletes will receive points based on their finishes in each segment of competition. Athletes

For each discipline and segment placement points will be awarded as follows:

1st - 10 placement points	2nd - 9 placement points
3rd - 8 placement points	4th - 7 placement points
5th - 6 placement points	6th - 5 placement point
7th - 4 placement points	8th - 3 placement points
9th - 2 placement points	10th - 1 placement point

ENTRIES PER COUNTRY -2018 OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES

Nation	LADIES	MEN	PAIRS	DANCE	TOTAL
Australia	1	1	1	0	3
Austria	0	0	1	0	1
Belgium	1	1	0	0	2
Brazil	1	1	0	0	2
Canada	3	2	3	3	11
China	1	2	3	1	7
Czech Republic	0	1	1	1	3
Finland	1	0	0	0	1
France	1	1	1	2	5
Georgia	0	1	0	0	1
Germany	1	1	2	1	5
Great Britain	0	0	0	1	1
Hungary	1	0	0	0	1
Israel	0	2	1	1	4
Italy	2	1	2	2	7
Japan	2	3	0	1	6
Kazakhstan	2	1	0	0	3
Latvia	1	1	0	0	2
Malaysia	0	1	0	0	1
North Korea	0	0	1	0	1
Poland	0	0	0	1	1
Russia	3	2	3	2	10
Slovakia	1	0	0	1	2
South Korea	2	1	1	1	5
Spain	0	2	0	1	3
Sweden	1	1	0	0	2
Switzerland	1	0	0	0	1
Turkey	0	0	0	1	1
Ukraine	1	1	0	1	3
United States	3	3	1	3	10
Uzbekistan	0	1	0	0	1



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

PRIMARY COACHES



RAFAEL ARUTUNIAN Nathan Chen, Adam Rippon



DENISE MYERS Bradie Tennell



DERRICK DELMORE Adam Rippon



DALILAH SAPPENFIELD Alexa Scimeca-Knierim/ Chris Knierim



TAMMY GAMBILL Karen Chen, Vincent Zhou



IGOR SHPILBAND Madison Chock/ Evan Bates



CHRISTY KRALL Vincent Zhou



TOM ZAKRAJSEK Mirai Nagasu, Vincent Zhou



PATRICE LAUZON Madison Hubbell/ Zachary Donohue



MARINA ZOUEVA Maia Shibutani/ Alex Shibutani



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

KAREN CHEN

Born: Aug. 16, 1999 - Fremont. California

Height: 5'

Home Club: Peninsula SC

Hometown: Fremont, California

Training Town: Riverside, California

Coach: Tammy Gambill

Choreographer: Mark Pillay,

Karen Chen

Short Program Music: "On Golden

Pond" by Dave Grusin



COMPETITIVE HISTORY					
EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)		
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS					
2018	3 (69.48)	4 (129.11)	3 (198.59)		
2017	1 (72.82)	1 (141.40)	1 (214.22)		
2016	12 (54.86)	8 (113.89)	8 (168.75)		
2015	6 (64.66)	3 (135.13)	3 (199.79)		
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS					
2017	5 (69.98)	6 (129.31)	4 (199.29)		
2015 (Junior)	12 (51.64)	8 (105.66)	8 (157.30)		
2014 (Junior)	6 (56.09)	9 (99.74)	9 (155.83)		
GRAND PRIX SERIES					
2017 Skate America	9 (59.53)	6 (123.27)	8 (182.80)		
2017 Skate Canada	5 (61.77)	7 (108.63)	7 (170.40)		
2016 NHK Trophy	7 (58,76))	5 (119.69)	6 (178.45)		
2016 Cup of China	9 (58.28)	5 (121.11)	7 (179.39)		
2015 Cup of China	7 (58.30)	5 (117.61)	5 (175.93)		
2015 Skate America	4 (62.28)	6 (110.26)	5 (172.54)		
FOUR CONTINENTS CHAMPIONSHIPS					
2017	12 (55.60)	10 (111.22)	12 (166.82)		
2016	12 (53.55)	10 (107.97)	12 (161.52)		

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2018 U.S. bronze medalist

2017 U.S. champion

2015 U.S. bronze medalist

2012 U.S. novice champion

2011 U.S. intermediate champion

NOTES

Began skating at age 6 as a way to express herself as a shy child ... Previously coached by Sherri Krahne-Thomas and Gilley Nicholsow... Brother, Jeffrey, is the 2016 U.S. juvenile ice dance champion with former partner Layla Karnes ... Enjoys assisting with group skating classes at her rink ... Finds painting, reading and listening to music therapeutic ... Paintings are featured prominently on gokarenchen.wordpress.com ... Is a fan of Totoro, a Japanese cartoon anime character.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

MIRAI NAGASU

Born: April 16, 199<mark>3 - Montebello,</mark> California

Height: 5'4"

Home Club: Pasadena FSC

Hometown: Arcadia, California

Training Town: Colorado Springs,

Colorado

School: University of Colorado -

Colorado Springs

Coach: Tom Zakrajsek

Choreographer: Jeffrey Buttle

Short Program Music: "Nocturne in C Sharp Minor" by Chopin

Free Skate Music: Music from *Miss Saigon* by various artists



JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST					
PROGRAM	INTER	NATIONAL COMPETITION	U.S. QU	ALIFYING COMPETITION	
PROGRAM	ISU SCORE	EVENT	U.S. SCORE	EVENT	
Short Program	73.40	2016 Autumn Classic International	73.09	2018 U.S. Championships	
Free Skate	132.04	2017 Four Continents Championships	140.75	2018 U.S. Championships	
Final Score	194.95	2017 Four Continents Championships	213.84	2018 U.S. Championships	

EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2018	2 (73.09)	2 (140.75)	2 (213.84)
2017	2 (71.95)	4 (122.95)	4 (194.90)
2016	5 (59.64)	4 (129.20)	4 (188.84)
2015	4 (65.28)	12 (101.35)	10 (166.63)
2014	3 (65.44)	3 (125.30)	3 (190.74)
2013	3 (64.39)	11 (109.36)	7 (173.75)
2012	5 (59.02)	8 (104.97)	7 (163.99)
2011	1 (63.35)	3 (113.91)	3 (177.26)
2010	1 (70.06)	3 (118.72)	2 (188.78)
2009	6 (54.79)	5 (105.20)	5 (159.99)
2008	1 (70.23)	3 (120.18)	1 (190.41)
OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES			
2010	6 (63.76)	5 (126.39)	4 (190.15)
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2016	10 (65.74)	11 (120.91)	10 (186.65)
2010	1 (70.40)	11 (105.08)	7 (175.48)
2008 (Junior)	1 (65.07)	3 (97.82)	3 (162.89)
2007 (Junior)	2 (57.22)	2 (106.62)	2 (163.84)
GRAND PRIX SERIES			
2017 NHK Trophy	5 (65.17)	4 (129.29)	4 (194.46)
2017 Rostelecom Cup	9 (56.15)	7 (122.10)	9 (178.25)
2016 Skate Canada	9 (53.19)	11 (98.23)	9 (151.42)
2016 NHK Trophy	4 (63.49)	8 (116.84)	5 (180.33)
2015 NHK Trophy	5 (61.10)	6 (114.54)	5 (175.64)
2014 Rostelecom Cup	4 (58.90)	6 (106.98)	4 (165.88)
2014 Skate America	10 (49.29)	6 (108.92)	6 (158.21)
2014 NHK Trophy	1 (68.16)	1 (123.00)	1 (191.16)
2014 Skate America	4 (60.81)	3 (118.57)	3 (179.38)
2013 Rostelecom Cup	4 (60.44)	3 (114.93)	3 (175.37)
2013 NHK Trophy	8 (51.01)	8 (90.70)	8 (141.71)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

2012 NHK Trophy	2 (61.18)	3 (115.50)	3 (176.68)
2012 Cup of China	3 (59.76)	4 (103.70)	4 (163.46)
2011 Cup of China	2 (60.96)	2 (112.26)	2 (173.22)
2011 Skate Canada	5 (52.73)	5 (98.99)	5 (151.72)
2010 Trophée Eric Bompard	2 (58.72)	1 (109.07)	2 (167.79)
2010 Cup of China	1 (58.76)	5 (87.47)	4 (146.23)
2009 Skate Canada	3 (56.34)	3 (100.49)	4 (156.83)
2009 Cup of China	1 (62.20)	6 (93.18)	5 (155.38)
2008 NHK Trophy	8 (50.14)	9 (74.08)	8 (124.22)
2008 Skate America	4 (56.42)	7 (86.48)	5 (142.90)

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2018 U.S. silver medalist

2016 Four Continents silver medalist

2014 U.S. bronze medalist

2011 Four Continents bronze medalist

2010 U.S. silver medalist, '11 bronze medalist

2010 Olympian (placed fourth)

2008 U.S. champion

2007 U.S. junior champion

2007 Junior Grand Prix Final champion

Two-time World Junior medalist (silver in 2007, bronze in '08)

NOTES

Began skating at age 5 ... Previously coached by Sashi Kuchiki, Sondra Holmes, Bob Paul, Sandy Gollihugh, Susan Austin, Charlene Wong, Frank Carroll and Amy Evidente ... Graduated Capistrano Connections Academy in 2011 ... Studying international business at the University of Colorado Colorado Springs ... Has three rescue dogs named Lincoln, Liberty and Lexi ... Loves reading and long walks with her dogs.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

BRADIE TENNELL

Born: Jan. 31, 1998 - Winfield, Illinois

Height: 5'6"

Home Club: Skokie Valley SC

Hometown: Carpentersville, Illinois

Training Town: Buffalo Grove, Illinois School: McHenry Community College Coach: Denise Myers, Jeremy Allen

Choreographer: Scott Brown,

Benoit Richaud

Short Program Music: "Taeguki" by

Lee Dong-Jun

Free Skate Music: Music from Cinderella by Patrick Doyle



JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST						
PROGRAM INTERNATIONAL COMPETITION			U.S. QUALIFYING COMPETITION			
PROGRAM	ISU SCORE	EVENT	U.S. SCORE	EVENT		
Short Program	67.01	2017 Skate America	73.79	2018 U.S. Championships		
Free Skate	137.09	2017 Skate America	145.72	2018 U.S. Championships		
Final Score	204.10	2017 Skate America	219.51	2018 U.S. Championships		

COMPETITIVE HISTORY					
EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)		
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS					
2018	1 (73.79)	1 (145.72)	1 (219.51)		
2017	9 (59.77)	11 (110.21)	9 (169.98)		
2016	7 (58.26)	6 (123.07)	6 (181.33)		
2015 (Junior)	1 (59.38)	1 (116.98)	1 (175.36)		
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS					
2017 (Junior)	7 (57.47)	7 (103.89)	7 (161.36)		
2016 (Junior)	4 (58.56)	14 (88. 96)	11 (147.52)		
GRAND PRIX SERIES					
2017 Skate America	4 (67.01)	3 (137.09)	3 (204.10)		

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS
2018 U.S. champion
2015 U.S. junior champion
2012 U.S. novice bronze medalist

NOTES

Began skating at 2 years old ... Mother is Jean Tennell, a registered nurse ... Has two brothers Austin, 15, and Shane, 13, who are both hockey players ... Recipient of the Janet Lynn Award and the Hershberger Award ... Didn't get her first haircut until age 13 when her mom cut off 21 inches ... Enjoys reading, family movie night and hanging out with friends.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

NATHAN CHEN

Born: May 5, 1999 – Salt Lake City

Height: 5'6"

Home Club: Salt Lake Figure Skating

Hometown: Salt Lake City

Training Town: Lakewood, California

Coach: Rafael Arutunian,

Nadia Kanaeva

Choreographer: Lori Nichol, Shae-Lynn Bourne

Short Program Music: "Nemesis" by Benjamin Clementine

Free Skate Music: Music from Mao's Last Dancer by Christopher Gordon



JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST					
PROGRAM	INTER	NATIONAL COMPETITION	U.S. QU	U.S. QUALIFYING COMPETITION	
PROGRAM	ISU SCORE	EVENT	U.S. SCORE	EVENT	
Short Program	104.12	2017 Skate America	106.39	2017 U.S. Championships	
Free Skate	204.34	2017 Four Continents Championships	212.08	2017 U.S. Championships	
Final Score	307.46	2017 Four Continents Championships	318.47	2017 U.S. Championships	

COMPETITIVE HISTORY			
EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2018	1 (104.45)	1 (210.78)	1 (315.23)
2017	1 (106.39)	1 (212.08)	1 (318.47)
2016	4 (86.33)	2 (180.60)	3 (266.93)
2015	8 (76.20)	8 (154.79)	8 (230.99)
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2017	6 (97.33)	4 (193.39)	6 (290.72)
2015 (Junior)	9 (69.87)	4 (143.98)	4 (213.85)
GRAND PRIX SERIES			
2017 Grand Prix Final	1 (103.32)	2 (183.19)	1 (286.51)
2017 Skate America	1 (104.12)	2 (171.76)	1 (275.88)
2017 Rostelecom Cup	1 (100.54)	2 (193.25)	1 (293.79)
2016 Grand Prix Final	5 (85.30)	1 (197.55)	2 (282.85)
2016 NHK Trophy	2 (87.94)	2 (180.97)	2 (268.91)
2016 Trophée de France	2 (92.85)	4 (171.95)	4 (264.80)
FOUR CONTINENTS CHAMPIONSHIPS	3		
2017	1 (103.12)	2 (204.34)	1 (307.46)

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2017-18 U.S. champion

2017 Grand Prix Final champion

2017 Four Continents champion

2016 U.S. bronze medalist

2014 World Junior bronze medalist

Two-time U.S. junior champion (2012, '14), '13 U.S. junior bronze medalist

2015 JGP Final champion

2013 JGP Final bronze medalist

Two-time U.S. novice champion (2010, '11)

2009 U.S. intermediate silver medalist and '08 U.S. juvenile bronze medalist

NOTES

Began skating at age 3 after watching his brothers play hockey ... Previously coached by Genia Chernyshova, Stephanee Grosscup and Karl Kover ... Became the first skater to land seven clean quad jumps in a competition at the 2017 U.S. Championships ... Became the first skater to land five quad jumps in a free skate at an international competition (2017 Four Continents) ... Parents are Zhidong Chen and Hetty Wang ... Is the youngest of five siblings ... Older siblings are Alice, Janice, Tony and Colin ... Enjoys playing guitar and biking along the beach.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

ADAM RIPPON

Born: Nov. 11, 1989 - Scranton, Pennsylvania

Height: 5'7"

Home Club: The SC of New York

Hometown: Los Angeles

Training Town: Lakewood, California

Coach: Rafael Arutunian, Vera Arutunian, Nadia Kaneva,

Derrick Delmore

Choreographer: Benji Schwimmer,

Jeffrey Buttle

Short Program Music: "Let Me Think About It" by Ida Corr vs. Fedde Le

Grand

Free Skate Music: "Arrival of the Birds" by The Cinematic Orchestra and "O"

by Coldplay



JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST					
INTERNATIONAL COMPETITION U.S. QUALIFYING COMPETITION					
PROGRAM	ISU SCORE	EVENT	U.S. SCORE	EVENT	
Short Program	89.04	2017 Skate America	96.52	2018 U.S. Championships	
Free Skate	182.28	2016 Trophee de France	187.77	2015 U.S. Championships	
Final Score	267.53	2016 Trophee de France	272.48	2015 U.S. Championships	

EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2018	2 (96.52)	4 (171.82)	4 (268.34)
2016	3 (88.01)	1 (182.74)	1 (270.75)
2015	5 (84.71)	1 (187.77)	2 (272.48)
2014	6 (77.58)	7 (144.61)	8 (222.19)
2013	6 (76.65)	6 (153.22)	5 (229.87)
2012	2 (82.94)	2 (157.93)	2 (240.87)
2011	9 (66.26)	3 (153.78)	5 (220.04)
2010	4 (72.91)	4 (152.16)	5 (225.07)
2009	12 (62.22)	6 (131.54)	7 (193.76)
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2016	7 (85.72)	4 (178.72)	6 (264.44)
2015	11 (75.14)	8 (154.57)	8 (229.71)
2012	10 (73.55)	16 (143.08)	13 (216.63)
2010	7 (80.11)	5 (151.36)	6 (231.47)
2009 (Junior)	1 (74.30)	1 (147.70)	1 (222.00)
2008 (Junior)	1 (69.35)	1 (130.55)	1 (199.90)
GRAND PRIX SERIES			
2017 Grand Prix Final	6 (86.19)	5 (168.14)	5 (254.33)
2017 Skate America	2 (89.04)	1 (177.41)	2 (266.45)
2017 NHK Trophy	4 (84.95)	2 (177.04)	2 (261.99)
2016 Grand Prix Final	6 (83.93)	6 (149.17)	6 (233.10)
2016 Trophee de France	4 (85.25)	2 (182.28)	3 (267.53)
2016 Skate America	2 (87.32))	3 (174.11)	3 (261.43)
2015 Rostelecom Cup	6 (78.77)	2 (169.86)	4 (248.63)
2015 Skate Canada	3 (80.36)	5 (159.33)	4 (239.69)
2014 Trophée Bompard	7 (76.98)	3 (148.44)	5 (225.42)
2014 Skate Canada	11 (62.83)	7 (139.09)	10 (201.92)
2013 NHK Trophy	4 (82.25)	4 (151.46)	4 (233.71)
2013 Skate America	3 (80.26)	3 (160.98)	2 (241.24)
2012 NHK Trophy	8 (67.89)	8 (142.58)	8 (210.47)
2012 Cup of China	4 (71.81)	4 (133.67)	4 (205.48)
2011 Trophee Eric Bompard	4 (72.96)	3 (144.93)	4 (217.89)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

2011 Skate Canada	4 (72.89)	4 (145.08)	4 (217.97)
2010 Skate America	3 (73.94)	7 (129.18)	4 (203.12)
2010 Skate Canada	3 (77.53)	2 (155.51)	3 (233.04)
2009 NHK Trophy	8 (67.15)	5 (130.46)	6 (197.61)
2009 Trophee Eric Bompard	3 (75.82)	3 (144.14)	3 (219.96)
2008 Cup of Russia	3 (71.62)	5 (136.31)	5 (207.93)
2008 Skate America	8 (59.60)	7 (115.22)	8 (174.82)
FOUR CONTINENTS CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2015	12 (68.37)	10 (143.93)	10 (212.30)
2014	8 (72.90)	8 (140.30)	8 (213.20)
2012	7 (74.92)	3 (146.63)	4 (221.55)
2011	4 (72.71)	5 (137.30)	5 (201.01)
2010	7 (69.56)	1 (156.22)	1 (225.78)

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2016 U.S. champion

2012 and '15 U.S. silver medalist

Two-time World Junior champion (2008-09); only man to win back-to-back World Junior titles

2010 Four Continents champion

NOTES

Began skating at age 9 ... Missed the 2017 season with a broken foot ... Previously coached by Yelena Sergeeva, Nikoli Morozov, Brian Orser, Ghislain Briand, Jason Dungjen and Yuka Sato ... Has choreographed programs for international competitors Mirai Nagasu, Ashley Wagner and Vivian Le ... Was born deaf and underwent corrective surgery as a child ... The oldest of six children (four boys and two girls) ... Enjoys running and hiking.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

VINCENT ZHOU

Born: Oct. 25, 2000 - San Jose, California

Height: 5'7"

Home Club: SC of San Francisco Hometown: Palo Alto. California

Training Town: Colorado Springs, Colorado / Riverside, California Coach: Tammy Gambill, Tom Zakrajsek, Christine Krall

Choreographer: Jeffrey Buttle

Short Program Music: "Chasing Cars"

by Snow Patrol

Free Skate Music: Music from Moulin Rouge! by various artists



JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST					
PROGRAM INTERNATIONAL COMPETITION U.S. QUALIFYING COMPETITION				ALIFYING COMPETITION	
PROGRAM	ISU SCORE	EVENT	U.S. SCORE	EVENT	
Short Program	80.53	2016 Junior Grand Prix, Japan	89.02	2018 U.S. Championships	
Free Skate	179.24	2017 World Junior Championships	184.81	2018 U.S. Championships	
Final Score	258.11	2017 World Junior Championships	273.83	2018 U.S. Championships	

COMPETITIVE HISTORY					
EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)		
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS					
2018	5 (89.02)	3 (184.81)	3 (273.83)		
2017	3 (87.85)	2 (175.18)	2 (263.03)		
2016	8 (68.10)	8 (149.13)	8 (217.23)		
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS					
2017 (Junior)	5 (78.87)	1 (179.24)	1 (258.11)		
2016 (Junior)	4 (77.31)	4 (143.88)	5 (221.19)		
GRAND PRIX SERIES					
2017 Internationaux de France	10 (66.12)	7 (156.09)	9 (222.21)		
2017 Cup of China	8 (80.23)	2 (176.43)	4 (256.66)		

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS
2018 U.S. bronze medalist
2017 World junior champion
2017 U.S. silver medalist
2013 U.S. junior champion
2012 U.S. novice champion
2011 U.S. intermediate champion

NOTES

Began skating at age 5 at a friend's birthday party ... Missed the 2014-15 season due to injury ... Trains in Colorado Springs ... Was an honor roll student at Cheyenne Mountain High School in Colorado Springs ... Received the Presidential Award for Educational Excellence ... Is a member of the National Honor Society ... Enjoys outdoor activities, animals and music ... Grew up playing many sports--soccer, basketball tennis, swimming and diving ... lists Brian Boitano has his hero.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

ALEXA SCIMECA-KNIERIM& CHRIS KNIERIM

SCIMECA-KNIERIM

Born: June 10, 1991 - Addison, Illinois

Height: 5'2"

Home Club: DuPage FSC Hometown: Addison, Illinois KNIERIM

Born: Nov. 5, 1987 - Tucson, Arizona

Height: 6'2"

Home Club: Broadmoor SC Hometown: San Diego, California

Training Town: Colorado Springs, Colorado Coach: Dalilah Sappenfield, Larry Ibarra

Choreographer: Rohene Ward, Christopher Dean

Short Program Music: "Come What May" from Moulin Rouge! by Nicole Kidman and Ewan McGregor

Free Skate Music: "Unchained Melody" from *Ghost the Musical* by Bruce Joel Rubin, Dave Stewart and Glen Ballard

JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST INTERNATIONAL COMPETITION U.S. QUALIFYING COMPETITION **PROGRAM** ISU SCORE **EVENT** U.S. SCORE **EVENT** Short Program 72.17 2017 World Championships 74 01 2015 U.S. Championships Free Skate 140.35 2016 Four Continents Championships 136.48 2015 U.S. Championships Final Score 207.96 2016 Four Continents Championships 210.49 2015 U.S. Championships

COMPETITIVE HISTORY				
EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)	
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS				
2018	1 (71.10)	1 (135.50)	1 (206.60)	
2016	2 (67.35)	2 (129.45)	2 (196.80)	
2015	1 (74.01)	1 (136.58)	1 (210.49)	
2014	5 (64.68)	4 (124.99)	4 (189.67)	
2013	3 (52.79)	1 (119.76)	2 (172.75)	
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS				
2017	8 (72.17)	11 (130.20)	10 (202.37)	
2016	7 (71.73)	12 (118.69)	9 (190.06)	
2015	7 (65.56)	7 (120.25)	7 (185.81)	
2013	12 (55.73)	9 (117.78)	9 (173.51)	
GRAND PRIX SERIES				
2017 Skate America	5 (64.27)	6 (124.80)	5 (189.07)	
2017 NHK Trophy	4 (65.86)	5 (126.65)	5 (192.51)	
2015 Grand Prix Final	6 (68.14)	7 (109.28)	7 (177.42)	
2015 NHK Trophy	2 (68.43)	3 (122.23)	3 (190.66)	
2015 Skate America	1 (69.69)	4 (122.28)	2 (191.97)	
2014 Trophée Bompard	4 (59.04)	3 (120.28)	4 (179.32)	
2014 Skate America	4 (60.61)	4 (108.01)	4 (168.62)	
2013 Rostelecom Cup	5 (59.56)	6 (114.14)	6 (173.70)	
2013 Cup of China	4 (57.99)	6 (103.73)	5 (161.72)	
2012 NHK Trophy	5 (54.51)	4 (108.69)	4 (163.10)	
FOUR CONTINENTS CHAMPIONSHIP	S			
2017	6 (69.10)	6 (124.81)	6 (193.91)	
2016	3 (67.61)	2 (140.35)	2 (207.96)	
2015	5 (63.54)	5 (124.44)	5 (187.98)	
2014	2 (66.04)	4 (104.31)	3 (170.35)	

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2018 U.S. champions

2015 U.S. champions

2013, '16 U.S. silver medalists

2016 Four Continents silver medalists

2014 Four Continents bronze medalists

NOTES

Announced partnership in April 2012 ... Married June 26, 2016 ... Missed the 2016-17 season due to an illness that required Scimeca-Knierim to undergo multiple stomach surgeries ... Have two cats named Scarlet and Muffy and two dogs named Cami and Diesel ... Scimeca-Knierim started skating at age 7 ... Earned an associate degree in general studies from College of DuPage (Glen Ellyn, Illinois) in 2014 ... Parents are Tom and Tina ... Has one sister, Alivia, and one brother, Derek. Knierim started competing at age 12 ... Earned an associate degree in diesel mechanics from Pikes Peak Community College (Colorado Springs, Colorado) in 2015.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

MADISON CHOCK & EVAN BATES

CHOCK

Born: July 2, 1992 - Redondo Beach,

California Height: 5'2"

Home Club: All Year FSC Hometown: Novi, Michigan

Training Town: Novi, Michigan Coach: Igor Shpilband

Choreographer: Igor Shpilband, Christopher Dean Short Dance Music: Marc Anthony medley Free Dance Music: "Imagine" by John Lennon

BATES

Born: Feb. 23, 1989 -Ann Arbor, Michigan Height: 6'1"

Home Club: Ann Arbor FSC Hometown: Northville, Michigan

JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST					
PROGRAM INTERNATIONAL COMPETITION U.S. QUALIFYING COMPETITION				ALIFYING COMPETITION	
PROGRAM	ISU SCORE	EVENT	U.S. SCORE	EVENT	
Short Dance	76.21	2016 Skate Canada	79.96	2017 U.S. Championships	
Free Dance	113.31	2016 World Championships	119.08	2017 U.S. Championships	
Final Score	188.24	2016 Skate Canada	199.04	2017 U.S. Championships	

EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2018	3 (77.61)	1 (118.99)	3 (196.60)
2017	2 (79.96)	1 (119.08)	2 (199.04)
2016	1 (75.14)	2 (111.79)	2 (186.93)
2015	1 (73.95)	1 (111.11)	1 (185.06)
2014	2 (73.41)	2 (108.03)	2 (181.44)
2013	2 (70.80)	2 (105.11)	2 (175.91)
2012	5 (55.49)	5 (89.59)	5 (145.08)
OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES			
2014	8 (65.46)	8 (99.18)	8 (164.64)
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2017	4 (76.25)	8 (105.79)	7 (182.04)
2016	3 (72.46)	3 (113.31)	3 (185.77)
2015	1 (74.47)	2 (106.87)	2 (181.34)
2014	4 (67.71)	5 (99.88)	5 (167.59)
2013	7 (66.74)	6 (97.19)	7 (163.93)
GRAND PRIX SERIES			
2017 Grand Prix Final	5 (74.36)	3 (112.79)	5 (187.15)
2017 Internationaux de France	2 (73.55)	2 (108.30)	2 (181.85)
2017 Cup of China	2 (72.66)	2 (111.84)	2 (184.50)
2016 Grand Prix Final	6 (70.87)	4 (108.45)	6 (179.32)
2016 Rostelecom Cup	1 (75.04)	3 (107.09)	2 (182.13)
2016 Skate Canada	2 (76.21)	1 (112.03)	2 (188.24)
2015 Grand Prix Final	2 (71.64)	3 (105.91)	2 (177.55)
2015 Cup of China	2 (65.36)	2 (103.80)	2 (169.16)
2015 Skate America	1 (70.56)	1 (102.66)	1 (173.22)
2014 Grand Prix Final	2 (65.06)	2 (102.03)	2 (167.09)
2014 Rostelecom Cup	1 (68.86)	1 (105.42)	1 (174.28)
2014 Skate America	1 (68.96)	1 (102.07)	1 (171.03)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

2013 Rostelecom Cup	4 (57.80)	3 (95.57)	3 (153.37)
2013 Cup of China	3 (56.77)	3 (93.76)	3 (150.53)
2012 Cup of China	4 (59.26)	4 (90.28)	4 (149.54)
2011 Trophée Bompard	5 (52.01)	5 (78.93)	5 (130.94)
2011 Skate Canada	6 (50.43)	4 (84.67)	4 (135.10)
FOUR CONTINENTS CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2017	3 (74.67)	3 (110.91)	3 (185.58)
2016	4 (67.05)	2 (107.59)	2 (174.64)
2015	1 (70.38)	2 (105.80)	2 (176.18)
2013	3 (65.44)	5 (94.98)	3 (160.42)

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2018 U.S. bronze medalists

2016-17, 2013-14 U.S. silver medalist

2016 World bronze medalists

2015 World silver medalists

2015-16 Four Continents silver medalists

2015 U.S. champions

2013, '17 Four Continents bronze medalists

NOTES

Announced partnership in July 2011 ... Previously coached by Marina Zoueva.

Chock started skating at age 5 ... Skated with Greg Zuerlein from 2006-11 ... Together they won the 2009 World Junior, U.S. junior and Junior Grand Prix Final titles ... Also were two-time U.S. bronze medalists (as juniors in 2008, as seniors in '11) and two-time bronze medalists in the Grand Prix Series ... Bates began skating at age 4 ... Competed with Emily Samuelson from 2000-10 ... Together, they were the 2009 U.S. silver medalists, 2010 U.S. bronze medalists and 2008 World Junior champions ... Placed 11th at the 2010 Olympic Winter Games.

Chock designs the team's costumes ... Parents are Wes and Barbara, both of whom work or worked for American Airlines.

Bates earned a bachelor's degree in organizational studies from University of Michigan in 2013 ... Is the 52nd member of his family to graduate from University of Michigan ... Parents are Eric (cardiologist) and Nancy (artist) ... Has two older siblings, Andrew and Alexis ... Has a toy poodle named Stella ... Volunteers with Special Olympics Michigan ... Enjoys reading, golfing and playing guitar.





MADISON HUBBELL & ZACHARY DONOHUE

HUBBELL

Born: Feb. 24, 1991 - Lansing, Michigan Born: Jan. 8, 1991 -

Height: 5'8"

Home Club: Lansing SC

Hometown: Okemos, Michigan

DONOHUE

North Madison, Connecticut

Height: 6'2"

Home Club: Lansing SC

Hometown: Madison, Connecticut

Training Town: Montreal

Coach: Patrice Lauzon, Marie-France Dubreuil, Romain Haguenauer, Pascal Denis

Choreographer: Marie-France Dubreuil, Ginette Cournoyer, Patrice Lauzon

Short Dance Music: "Le Serpent" by Guem, "Cuando Calienta El Sol" by Talya Ferro, "Sambando" by Los Ritmos

Free Dance Music: "Across the Sky (Instrumental)" by Rag'n'Bone Man, "Caught Out in the Rain" by Beth Hart

JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST					
PROGRAM	INTER	NATIONAL COMPETITION	U.S. QU	ALIFYING COMPETITION	
PROGRAM	ISU SCORE	EVENT	U.S. SCORE	EVENT	
Short Dance	76.53	2017 World Championships	79.72	2017 U.S. Championships	
Free Dance	113.35	2017 Skate Canada	118.02	2018 U.S. Championships	
Final Score	189.43	2017 Skate Canada	197.12	2018 U.S. Championships	

EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2018	2 (79.10)	2 (118.02)	1 (197.12)
2017	3 (79.72)	3 (111.70)	3 (191.42)
2016	3 (71.70)	3 (107.71)	3 (178.81)
2015	3 (65.43)	3 (99.31)	3 (164.74)
2014	4 (66.69)	4 (101.58)	4 (168.27)
2013	3 (67.75)	4 (100.11)	4 (167.86)
2012	3 (57.56)	3 (94.04)	3 (151.60)
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2017	3 (76.53)	10 (101.17)	9 (177.70)
2016	7 (68.44)	6 (108.37)	6 (176.81)
2015	11 (61.43)	10 (95.13)	10 (156.56)
2012	8 (59.56)	10 (84.39)	10 (143.95)
GRAND PRIX SERIES			
2017 Grand Prix Final	4 (74.81)	4 (112.59)	4 (187.40)
2017 NHK Trophy	2 (76.31)	2 (112.04)	2 (188.35)
2017 Skate Canada	3 (76.08)	2 (113.35)	3 (189.43)
2016 Grand Prix Final	5 (72.47)	6 (107.12)	5 (179.59)
2016 Trophée de France	3 (66.77)	2 (107.81)	2 (174.58)
2016 Skate America	3 (68.78)	2 (106.99)	2 (175.77)
2015 Grand Prix Final	5 (66.21)	6 (96.99)	6 (163.20)
2015 NHK Trophy	2 (66.57)	3 (100.92)	3 (167.49)
2015 Trophée Bompard	1 (64.45)	Event canceled	1 (64.45)
2014 Trophée Bompard	3 (60.19)	3 (91.92)	3 (152.11)
2014 Skate Canada	3 (59.29)	3 (88.94)	3 (148.23)
2013 Skate Canada	3 (60.92)	3 (92.28)	3 (153.20)
2013 Skate America	4 (60.71)	4 (92.27)	4 (152.98)
2012 Trophée Bompard	4 (56.54)	2 (88.69)	4 (145.23)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

2012 Skate Canada	4 (54.84)	6 (80.32)	5 (135.16)
2011 Skate America	6 (49.71)	3 (81.33)	6 (131.04)
FOUR CONTINENTS CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2017	4 (73.79)	6 (107.03)	4 (180.82)
2016	3 (69.36)	3 (102.93)	4 (172.29)
2014	2 (61.05)	1 (97.20)	1 (158.25
2012	5 (49.93)	5 (79.27)	5 (129.20)

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2018 U.S. champions

Four-time U.S. bronze medalists (2012, 2015-17)

2014 Four Continents champions

NOTES

Announced partnership in May 2011 ... Previously coached by Pasquale Camerlengo and Angelika Krylova in Bloomfield Hills, Michigan (2011-15) ... Hubbell started to skate at age 5 ... Previously skated with older brother, Keiffer, with whom she won U.S. titles at the juvenile (2003), intermediate (2004) and junior (2008) levels ... Also won gold at the 2006 JGP Final and bronze at the 2010 Four Continents Championships ... Donohue began skating at age 11 ... Previously skated with Allissandra Aronow and Piper Gilles, with whom he won the junior bronze medal at the 2009 and 2010 U.S. Championships.

Hubbell graduated from Ohdela online high school in 2009 ... Parents are Brad (lawyer) and Susan (seamstress) ... Also has two brothers, Zachary and Kieffer ... Has a Pomsky named Nova ... Loves cooking for her family and friends ... Enjoys gardening, writing, knitting, sewing and watercolor painting.

Donohue was homeschooled through high school ... would like to choreograph and own an elite skating school when he's done competing ... Enjoys singing and music.





OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

MAIA SHIBUTANI & ALEX SHIBUTANI

MAIA

Born: July 20, 1994 - New York

Height: 5'3"

Home Club: The SC of New York Hometown: Ann Arbor, Michigan ALEX

Born: April 25, 1991 - Boston

Height: 6'

Home Club: The SC of New York Hometown: Ann Arbor, Michigan

Training Town: Canton, Michigan

Coach: Marina Zoueva, Massimo Scali, Johnny Johns, Oleg Epstein

Choreographer: Marina Zoueva, Massimo Scali, Renee Roca, Peter Tchernyshev, Stephane Lambiel, Serge Onik,

Jenna Johnson

Short Dance Music: Pérez Prado medley Free Dance Music: "Paradise" by Coldplay

JUDGING SYSTEM COMPETITIVE BEST					
PROGRAM INTERNATIONAL COMPETITION U.S. QUALIFYING COMPETITION				QUALIFYING COMPETITION	
PROGRAM	ISU SCORE	EVENT	U.S. SCORE	EVENT	
Short Dance	79.18	2017 Skate America	82.42	2017 U.S. Championships	
Free Dance	115.26	2017 Four Continents Championships	117.63	2017 U.S. Championships	
Final Score	194.25	2017 Skate America	200.05	2017 U.S. Championships	

EVENT	SP PLACE (SCORE)	FS PLACE (SCORE)	OVERALL (SCORE)
U.S. CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2018	1 (82.33)	3 (114.60)	2 (196.63)
2017	1 (82.42)	2 (117.63)	1 (200.05)
2016	2 (74.67)	1 (115.47)	1 (190.14)
2015	2 (73.84)	2 (107.47)	2 (181.31)
2014	3 (68.00)	3 (102.44)	3 (170.44)
2013	3 (69.63)	3 (104.58)	3 (174.21)
2012	2 (72.61)	2 (106.23)	2 (178.84)
2011	2 (70.47)	2 (102.71)	2 (173.18)
OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES			
2014	9 (64.47)	10 (90.70)	9 (155.17)
WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2017	5 (74.88)	4 (110.30)	3 (185.18)
2016	2 (74.40)	2 (113.73)	2 (188.43)
2015	6 (69.32)	5 (102.71)	5 (172.03)
2014	6 (63.55)	6 (95.02)	6 (158.57)
2013	8 (66.14)	9 (91.57)	8 (157.71)
2012	7 (62.35)	11 (82.37)	8 (144.72)
2011	4 (66.88)	3 (96.91)	3 (163.79)
GRAND PRIX SERES			
2017 Grand Prix Final	1 (78.09)	1 (109.91)	1 (188.00)
2017 Skate America	1 (79.18)	1 (115.07)	1 (194.25)
2017 Rostelecom Cup	1 (77.30)	1 (111.94)	1 (189.24)
2016 Grand Prix Final	2 (77.97)	3 (111.63)	3 (189.60)
2016 Cup of China	2 (73.23)	1 (111.90)	1 (185.13)
2016 Skate America	1 (73.04)	1 (112.71)	1 (185.75)
2015 Grand Prix Final	4 (69.11)	4 (105.81)	4 (174.92)
2015 NHK Trophy	1 (68.08)	1 (106.35)	1 (174.43)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

2015 Skate Canada	2 (66.00)	2 (102.36)	2 (168.36)
2014 Cup of China	1 (65.20)	2 (92.16)	2 (157.36)
2014 Skate America	2 (64.14)	2 (96.19)	2 (160.33)
2013 NHK Trophy	3 (63.09)	3 (94.49)	3 (157.58)
2013 Skate America	3 (61.26)	3 (93.21)	3 (154.47)
2012 NHK Trophy	2 (60.84)	3 (93.72)	3 (154.56)
2012 Rostelecom Cup	4 (58.26)	5 (82.65)	4 (140.91)
2011 Grand Prix Final	5 (65.53)	4 (95.02)	5 (160.55)
2011 NHK Trophy	3 (59.02)	1 (92.83)	1 (151.85)
2011 Cup of China	2 (57.79)	2 (90.61)	2 (148.40)
2010 NHK Trophy	5 (53.68)	2 (83.25)	3 (136.93)
2010 Skate America	4 (56.46)	3 (88.35)	3 (144.81)
FOUR CONTINENTS CHAMPIONSHIPS			
2017	2 (76.59)	2 (115.26)	2 (191.85)
2016	1 (72.86)	1 (108.76)	1 (181.62)
2015	2 (69.65)	3 (101.14)	3 (170.79)
2013	4 (63.26)	4 (96.71)	4 (159.97)
2012	4 (63.38)	4 (94.94)	4 (158.29)
2011	4 (62.04)	2 (93.34)	2 (155.38)

CAREER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

2018 U.S. silver medalists

2016-17 U.S. champions

2017 Four Continents silver medalists

2016-17 Grand Prix Final bronze medalists

2017 World bronze medalists

2016 World silver medalists

2016 Four Continents champions

2011 World bronze medalists.

U.S. champions at the intermediate (2006), novice ('07), junior ('10) levels

Have medaled at the U.S. Championships 13 consecutive years

NOTES

Began skating at the ages of 4 (Maia) and 7 (Alex) while growing up in Old Greenwich, Connecticut ... Began ice dancing together in 2004 when Maia was 9 and Alex was 12... Relocated to train in Colorado Springs for two years and relocated a second time to train in Canton, Michigan ... Have medaled at the U.S. Championships for 13 consecutive years, at every level and every year that they have competed ... Voted SKATING Magazine Readers' Choice Award winners in 2016 ... Are two-time PSA Edi Award winners ... Won Team USA's Team of the Month three times ... Are three-time World medalists (2011, 2016, 2017).

Maia and Alex were born in New York City and Boston, respectively ... Reside in Ann Arbor, Michigan where they graduated from Huron High School (Ann Arbor) in 2009 and 2012 ... both have attended classes at the University of Michigan ... Their ShibSibs YouTube channel, launched in July 2012, has more than 75 original content videos which have garnered almost 5 million views ... They are sports envoys for the U.S. State Department, and have twice been guests of the Secretary State and the Vice President at US State Department functions honoring the Prime Minister of Japan ... They are members of the Athletes' Advisory Commission for the LA2028 Summer Olympics bid organization ... Maia is a two-time recipient of the Women's Sports Foundation's Travel and Training Grant (2012, 2014) ... They are Athlete Ambassadors for Right to Play and Figure Skating in Harlem and support The Jimmy Fund, The ONE Fund and charity: water ... Serve as mentors in the United States Olympic Committee's "Thank you, PyeongChang" initiative – a goodwill campaign aimed to contribute to the positive legacy of the PyeongChang Games.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

U.S. FIGURE SKATING OLYMPIC CHAMPIONS

1948

Dick Button

1952

Dick Button

1956

Tenley Albright, Hayes Jenkins

1960

Carol Heiss, David Jenkins

1968

Peggy Fleming

1976

Dorothy Hamill

1984

Scott Hamilton

1988

Brian Boitano

1992

Kristi Yamaguchi

1998

Tara Lipinski

2002

Sarah Hughes

2010

Evan Lysacek

2014

Meryl Davis & Charlie White



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

MOST OLYMPIC TITLES BY COUNTRY**					
NATION	MEN	LADIES	PAIRS	ICE DANCE	TOTAL
USA	7	7	0	1	15
*Soviet Union	1	0	8	4	13
*Russia	4	1	5	3	13
Austria	3	2	2	0	7
Germany/GDR	1	3	3	0	7
Great Britain	2	2	0	1	5
Sweden	4	1	0	0	5
Canada	0	1	2	1	4
France	0	0	2	1	3
Norway	0	3	0	0	3
Belgium	0	0	1	0	1
Czech Republic	1	0	0	0	1
Finland	0	0	1	0	1
Holland	0	1	0	0	1
Japan	1	1	0	0	2
*Ukraine	0	1	0	0	1
China	0	0	1	0	1
Korea	0	1	0	0	1

_			_	
MOST OLYMPIC	MEDALS BY C	OUNTRY**		
GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE	TOTAL	
15	16	17	48	
13	11	6	30	
13	9	3	25	
4	10	10	24	
7	9	4	20	
7	7	7	21	
5	2	6	13	
5	3	2	10	
3	2	5	10	
3	2	1	6	
0	2	4	6	
1	2	3	6	
1	1	3	5	
2	2	1	5	
1	2	0	3	
0	2	1	3	
1	0	1	2	
1	1	0	2	
1	0	1	2	
0	0	2	2	
1	1	0	2	
0	0	1	1	
	GOLD 15 13 13 4 7 7 5 5 5 3 3 0 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 1 1	GOLD SILVER 15 16 13 11 13 9 4 10 7 9 7 7 5 2 5 3 3 2 0 2 1 1 2 2 1 2 0 2 1 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1	15 16 17 13 11 6 13 9 3 4 10 10 7 9 4 7 7 7 5 2 6 5 3 2 3 2 5 3 2 1 0 2 4 1 2 3 1 1 3 2 2 1 1 2 0 0 2 1 1 0 1 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 0 1 1 0	GOLD SILVER BRONZE TOTAL 15 16 17 48 13 11 6 30 13 9 3 25 4 10 10 24 7 9 4 20 7 7 7 21 5 2 6 13 5 3 2 10 3 2 5 10 3 2 1 6 0 2 4 6 1 2 3 6 1 1 3 5 2 2 1 5 1 2 0 3 2 2 1 3 1 2 0 3 2 1 3 1 1 2 0 3 2 1 3 1

^{*}The Soviet Union last competed in the 1992 Olympic Winter Games. The Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS) competed in the 1992 World Figure Skating Championships. Russia and Ukraine began competing as separate nations at the 1994 Olympic Winter Games. **Does not inlude Olympic Team Event medal count. Please refer to page 89.



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

MOST OLYMPIC TEAM EVENT MEDALS BY COUNTRY**					
NATION	GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE	TOTAL	
*Russia	1	0	0	1	
Canada	0	1	0	1	
USA	0	0	1	1	

**Does not inlude medal count by individual discipline. Please refer to page 88. Event first held at 2014 Olympic Winter Games in Sochi, Russia.

	MOST WORL	D TITLES BY C	DUNTRY		
NATION	MEN	LADIES	PAIRS	ICE DANCE	TOTAL
USA	23	26	2	2	53
*Soviet Union	4	0	24	16	44
Austria	22	7	7	0	36
Canada	13	4	12	4	33
*Russia	7	6	8	11	32
Great Britain	2	6	3	17	28
Germany/GDR	4	9	12	0	25
Sweden	15	0	0	0	15
Hungary	0	7	5	1	13
France	3	1	4	5	13
Czech Republic	3	2	1	4	10
Norway	0	10	0	0	10
Japan	3	7	0	0	10
China	0	1	6	0	7
Holland	0	4	0	0	4
Switzerland	3	1	0	0	4
*CIS	1	0	1	1	3
Finland	0	0	3	0	3
Belgium	0	0	2	0	2
Bulgaria	0	0	0	2	2
Italy	0	1	0	2	3
Korea	0	2	0	0	2
*Ukraine	0	1	0	0	1
Spain	2	0	0	0	2

MOST OLYMPIC MEDALS WON

BY A U.S. SKATER

*Beatrix Loughran......3 (2 silver, 1 bronze)

**Meryl Davis & Charlie White 3 (1 gold, 1 silver, 1 team bronze)

Richard Button2 (2 gold)

Tenley Albright......2 (1 gold, 1 silver)

*Loughran (ladies silver in 1924, ladies bronze in 1928, pairs silver in 1932)

**Davis & White (ice dance silver in 2010, ice dance gold in 2014, team bronze in 2014)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

YOUNGEST OLYMPIC CHAMPIONS

LADIES	
COMPETITOR'S NAME, AGE (YEAR)	DOB
1. Tara Lipinski (USA), 15 (1998)	6/10/1982
2. Sonja Henie (NOR), 15 (1928)	4/8/1912
3. Oksana Baiul (UKR), 16 (1994)	11/16/1977
4. Sarah Hughes (USA), 16 (2002)	5/2/1985
5. Adelina Sotnikova (RUS), 17 (2014)	7/1/1996)
6. Katarina Witt (GDR), 18 (1984)	12/3/1965
7. Barbara Ann Scott (CAN), 18 (1948)	5/9/1929
8. Anett Poetzsch (GDR), 19 (1980)	9/9/1960
9. Yu-Na Kim (KOR), 19 (2010)	9/5/1990
10. Peggy Fleming (USA), 19 (1968)	7/27/1948
11. Dorothy Hamill (USA), 19 (1976)	7/26/1956
12. Sonja Henie (NOR), 19 (1932)	4/8/1912
13. Tenley Albright (USA), 20 (1956)	7/18/1935
14. Kristi Yamaguchi (USA), 20 (1992)	7/12/1971
15. Beatrix Schuba (AUT), 20 (1972)	4/15/1951

MEN	
COMPETITOR'S NAME, AGE (YEAR)	DOB
1. Richard Button (USA), 18 (1948)	7/18/1929
2. Yuzuru Hanyu (JPN), 19 (2014)	12/7/1994
3. Alexei Urmanov (RUS), 20 (1994)	11/17/1973
4. Wolfgang Schwarz (AUT), 20 (1968)	9/14/1947
5. Ilia Kulik (RUS), 20 (1998)	5/23/1977
6. Manfred Schnelldorfer (FRG), 20 (1964)	5/2/1943
7. Karl Schafer (AUT), 21 (1932)	5/17/1910
8. Ondrej Nepela (CZE), 21 (1972)	1/22/1951
9. Robin Cousins (GBR), 22 (1980)	8/17/1957
10. Richard Button (USA), 22 (1952)	7/18/1929
11. Viktor Petrenko (EUN), 22 (1992)	6/27/1969
12. Karl Schafer (AUT), 22 (1932)	5/17/1910
13. Hayes Jenkins (USA), 22 (1956)	3/23/1933
14. Alexei Yagudin (RUS), 22 (2002)	3/18/1980



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES MEDALISTS

		LA	ADIES	
		GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE
2014	Sochi, RUS	Adelina Sotnikova (RUS) 224.59	Yu-Na Kim (KOR) 219.11	Carolina Kostner (ITA) 216.73
2010	Vancouver, CAN	Yu-Na Kim (KOR) 228.56	Mao Asada (JPN) 205.50	Joannie Rochette (CAN) 202.64
2006	Torino, ITA	Shizuka Arakawa (JPN) 191.34	Sasha Cohen (USA) 183.36	Irina Slutskaya (RUS) 181.44
2002	Salt Lake City, USA	Sarah Hughes (USA)	Irina Slutskaya (RUS)	Michelle Kwan (USA)
1998	Nagano, JPN	Tara Lipinski (USA)	Michelle Kwan (USA)	Chen Lu (CHN)
1994	Lillehammer, NOR	Oksana Baiul (UKR)	Nancy Kerrigan (USA)	Chen Lu (CHN)
1992	Albertville, FRA	Kristi Yamaguchi (USA)	Midori Ito (JPN)	Nancy Kerrigan (USA)
1988	Calgary, CAN	Katarina Witt (GDR)	Elizabeth Manley (CAN)	Debi Thomas (USA)
1984	Sarajevo, YUG	Katarina Witt (GDR)	Rosalynn Sumners (USA)	Kira Ivanova (URS)
1980	Lake Placid, USA	Anett Poetzsh (GDR)	Linda Fratianne (USA)	Dagmar Lurz (FRG)
1976	Innsbruck, AUT	Dorothy Hamill (USA)	Dianne de Leeuw (HOL)	Christine Errath (GDR)
1972	Sapporo, JPN	Beatrix Schuba (AUT)	Karen Magnussen (CAN)	Janet Lynn (USA)
1968	Grenoble, FRA	Peggy Fleming (USA)	Gabriele Seyfert (GDR)	Hana Maskova (CZE)
1964	Innsbruck, AUT	Sjoukje Dijkstra (HOL)	Regine Heitzer (AUT)	Petra Burka (CAN)
1960	Squaw Valley, USA	Carol Heiss (USA)	Sjoukje Dijkstra (HOL)	Barbara Roles (USA)
1956	Cortina, ITA	Tenley Albright (USA)	Carol Heiss (USA)	Ingrid Wendl (AUT)
1952	Oslo, NOR	Jeannette Altwegg (GBR)	Tenley Albright (USA)	Jacqueline du Bief (FRA)
1948	St. Moritz, SWI	Barbara Ann Scott (CAN)	Eva Pawlik (AUT)	Jeannette Altwegg (GBR)
1944	Olympics not held	(World War II)		
1940	Olympics not held	(World War II)		
1936	Garmisch, GER	Sonja Henie (NOR)	Cecilia Colledge (GBR)	Vivi-Anne Hulten (SWE)
1932	Lake Placid, USA	Sonja Henie (NOR)	Fritzi Burger (AUT)	Maribel Vinson (USA)
1928	St. Moritz, SWI	Sonja Henie (NOR)	Fritzi Burger (AUT)	Beatrix Loughran (USA)
1924	Chamonix, FRA	Herma Plank-Szabo (AUT)	Beatrix Loughran (USA)	Ethel Muckelt (GBR)
1920	Antwerp, BEL	Magda Julin-Mauroy (SWE)	Svea Noren (SWE)	Theresa Weld (USA)
1908	London, GBR	Madge Syers (GBR)	Elsa Rendschmidt (GER)	Dorothy Greenhough (GBR)

		М	EN	
		GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE
2014	Sochi, RUS	Yuzuru Hanyu (JPN) 280.09	Patrick Chan (CAN) 275.62	Denis Ten (KAZ) 255.10
2010	Vancouver, CAN	Evan Lysacek (USA) 257.67	Evgeni Plushenko (RUS) 256.36	Daisuke Takahashi (JPN) 247.23
2006	Torino, ITA	Evgeni Plushenko (RUS) 258.33	Stephane Lambiel (SUI) 231.21	Jeffrey Buttle (CAN) 227.59
2002	Salt Lake City, USA	Alexei Yagudin (RUS)	Evgeni Plushenko (RUS)	Timothy Goebel (USA)
1998	Nagano, JPN	Ilia Kulik (RUS)	Elvis Stojko (CAN)	Philippe Candeloro (FRA)
1994	Lillehammer, NOR	Alexei Urmanov (RUS)	Elvis Stojko (CAN)	Philippe Candeloro (FRA)
1992	Albertville, FRA	Viktor Petrenko (EUN)	Paul Wylie (USA)	Petr Barna (CZE)
1988	Calgary, CAN	Brian Boitano (USA)	Brian Orser (CAN)	Viktor Petrenko (URS)
1984	Sarajevo, YUG	Scott Hamilton (USA)	Brian Orser (CAN)	Jozef Sabovcik (CZE)
1980	Lake Placid, USA	Robin Cousins (GBR)	Jan Hoffmann (GDR)	Charles Tickner (USA)
1976	Innsbruck, AUT	John Curry (GBR)	Vladimir Kovalev (URS)	Toller Cranston (CAN)
1972	Sapporo, JPN	Ondrej Nepela (CZE)	Sergei Chetverukhin (URS)	Patrick Pera (FRA)
1968	Grenoble, FRA	Wolfgang Schwarz (AUT)	Tim Wood (USA)	Patrick Pera (FRA)
1964	Innsbruck, AUT	Manfred Schnelldorfer (FRG)	Alain Calmat (FRA)	Scott Allen (USA)
1960	Squaw Valley, USA	David Jenkins (USA)	Karol Divin (CZE)	Donald Jackson (CAN)
1956	Cortina, ITA	Hayes A. Jenkins (USA)	Ronald Robertson (USA)	David Jenkins (USA)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES MEDALISTS

MEN CONTINUED					
		GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE	
1936	Garmisch, GER	Karl Schafer (AUT)	Ernst Baier (GER)	Felix Kaspar (AUT)	
1932	Lake Placid, USA	Karl Schafer (AUT)	Gillis Grafstrom (SWE)	Montgomery Wilson (CAN)	
1928	St. Moritz, SWI	Gillis Grafstrom (SWE)	Willy Boeckl (AUT)	Robert van Zeebroeck (BEL)	
1924	Chamonix, FRA	Gillis Grafstrom (SWE)	Willy Boeckl (AUT)	Georg Gautschi (SWI)	
1920	Antwerp, BEL	Gillis Grafstrom (SWE)	Andreas Krogh (NOR)	Martin Stixrud (NOR)	
1908	London, GBR	Ulrich Salchow (SWE)	Richard Johansson (SWE)	Per Thoren (SWE)	
1952	Oslo, NOR	Richard Button (USA)	Helmut Seibt (AUT)	James Grogan (USA)	
1948	St. Moritz, SWI	Richard Button (USA)	Hans Gerschwiler (SWI)	Edi Rada (AUT)	
1944	Olympics not held	(World War II)			
1940	Olympics not held	(World War II)			

			PAIRS	
		GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE
2014	Sochi, RUS	Tatiana Volosozhar (RUS) Maxim Trankov 236.86	Ksenia Stolbova (RUS) Fedor Klimov 218.68	Aliona Savchenko (GER) Robin Szolkowy 215.78
2010	Vancouver, CAN	Xue Shen (CHN) 216.57 Hongbo Zhao	Qing Pang (CHN) 213.31 Jian Tong	Aliona Savchenko (GER) 210.60 Robin Szolkowy
2006	Torino, ITA	Tatiana Totmianina (RUS) Maxim Marinin 204.48	Dan Zhang (CHN) 189.73 Hao Zhang	Xue Shen (CHN) 186.91 Hongbo Zhao
2002	Salt Lake City, USA	Elena Berezhnaya (RUS) Anton Sikharulidize *Jamie Salé (CAN) David Pelletier		Xue Shen (CHN) Hongbo Zhao
1998	Nagano, JPN	Oksana Kazakova (RUS) Artur Dmitriev	Elena Berezhnaya (RUS) Anton Sikharulidze	Mandy Wötzel (GER) Ingo Steuer
1994	Lillehammer, NOR	Ekaterina Gordeeva (RUS) Sergei Grinkov	Natalia Mishkutionok (RUS) Artur Dmitriev	Isabelle Brasseur (CAN) Lloyd Eisler
1992	Albertville, FRA	Natalia Mishkutionok (EUN) Artur Dmitriev	Elena Bechke (EUN) Denis Petrov	Isabelle Brasseur (CAN) Lloyd Eisler
1988	Calgary, CAN	Ekaterina Gordeeva (URS) Sergei Grinkov	Elena Valova (URS) Oleg Vasiliev	Jill Watson (USA) Peter Oppegard
1984	Sarajevo, YUG	Elena Valova (URS) Oleg Vasiliev	Caitlin Carruthers (USA) Peter Carruthers	Larissa Selezneva (URS) Oleg Makarov
1980	Lake Placid, USA	Irina Rodnina (URS) Aleksandr Zaitsev	Marina Cherkasova (URS) Sergei Shakrai	Manuella Mager (GDR) Uwe Bewersdorff
1976	Innsbruck, AUT	Irina Rodnina (URS) Aleksandr Zaitsev	Romy Kermer (GDR) Rolf Osterreich	Manuela Gross (GDR) Uwe Kagelmann
1972	Sapporo, JPN	Irina Rodnina (URS) Alexsei Ulanov	Ludmila Smirnova (URS) Andrei Suraikin	Manuela Gross (GDR) Uwe Kagelmann
1968	Grenoble, FRA	Ludmila Belousova (URS) Oleg Protopopov	Tatiana Zhuk (URS) Alexandr Gorelik	Margot Glockshuber (FRG) Wolfgang Danne
1964	Innsbruck, AUT	Ludmila Belousova (URS) Oleg Protopopov and Debbi Wilkes (CAN) Guy Revell	*Marika Kilius (EUA) Hans-Jurgen Baumler	Vivian Joseph (USA) Ronald Joseph
1960	Squaw Valley, USA	Barbara Wagner (CAN) Robert Paul	Marika Kilius (FRG) Hans-Jurgen Baumler	Nancy Ludington (USA) Ronald Ludington
1956	Cortina, ITA	Elizabeth Schwarz (AUT) Kurt Oppelt	Frances Dafoe (CAN) Norris Bowden	Marianna Nagy (HUN) Laszlo Nagy
1952	Oslo, NOR	Ria Falk (FRG) Paul Falk	Karol Kennedy (USA) Peter Kennedy	Marianna Nagy (HUN) Laszlo Nagy
1948	St. Moritz, SWI	Micheline Lannoy (BEL) Pierre Baugniet	Andrea Kekesy (HUN) Ede Kiraly	Suzanne Morrow (CAN) Wallace Distelmeyer



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES MEDALISTS

		PAII	RS CONTINUED	
		GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE
1944	Olympics not held W	/orld War II		
1940	Olympics not held W	/orld War II		
1936	Garmisch, GER	Maxie Herber (GER) Ernst Baier	Ilse Pausin (AUT) Erich Pausin	Emilie Rotter (HUN) Laszlo Szollas
1932	Lake Placid, USA	Andree Brunet (FRA) Pierre Brunet	Beatrix Loughran (USA) Sherwin Badger	Emilie Rotter (HUN) Laszlo Szollas
1928	St. Moritz, SWI	Andree Brunet (FRA) Pierre Brunet	Lilly Scholz (AUT) Otto Kaiser	Melitta Brunner (AUT) Ludwig Wrede
1924	Chamonix, FRA	Helene Engelmann (AUT) Alfred Berger	Ludowika Jakobsson (FIN) Walter Jakobsson	Andree Brunet (FRA) Pierre Brunet
1920	Antwerp, BEL	Ludowika Jakobsson (FIN) Walter Jakobsson	Alexia Bryn (NOR) Yngvar Bryn	Phyllis Johnson (GBR) Basil Williams
1908	London, GBR	Anna Hubler (GER) Heinrich Burger	Phyllis Johnson (GBR) James Johnson	Madge Syers (GBR) Edgar Syers

^{*}The Executive Board of the IOC, acting on a proposal by the ISU, awarded a second gold medal to Salé/Pelletier after allegations of judging misconduct.

		IC	E DANCE	
		GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE
2014	Sochi, RUS	Meryl Davis (USA) 195.52 Charlie White	Tessa Virtue (CAN) 190.99 Scott Moir	Elena Ilinykh (RUS) 183.48 Nikita Katsalapov
2010	Vancouver, CAN	Tessa Virtue (CAN) 221.57 Scott Moir	Meryl Davis (USA) 215.74 Charlie White	Oksana Domnina (RUS) Maxim Shabalin 207.64
2006	Torino, ITA	Tatiana Navka (RUS) 200.64 Roman Kostomarov	Tanith Belbin (USA) 196.06 Ben Agosto	Elena Grushina (UKR) Ruslan Goncharov 195.85
2002	Salt Lake City, USA	Marina Anissina (FRA) Gwendal Peizerat	Irina Lobacheva (RUS) Ilia Averbukh	Barbara Fusar-Poli (ITA) Maurizio Margaglio
1998	Nagano, JPN	Oksana Grishuk (RUS) Evgeni Platov	Anjelika Krylova (RUS) Oleg Ovsyannikov	Marina Anissina (FRA) Gwendal Peizerat
1994	Lillehammer, NOR	Oksana Grishuk (RUS) Evgeni Platov	Maia Usova (RUS) Alexander Zhulin	Jayne Torvill (GBR) Christopher Dean
1992	Albertville, FRA	Marina Klimova (EUN) Sergei Ponomarenko	Isabelle Duchesnay (FRA) Paul Duchesnay	Maia Usova (EUN) Alexander Zhulin
1988	Calgary, CAN	Natalia Bestemianova (URS) Andrei Bukin	Marina Klimova (URS) Sergei Ponomarenko	Tracy Wilson (CAN) Robert McCall
1984	Sarajevo, YUG	Jayne Torvill (GBR) Christopher Dean	Natalia Bestemianova (URS) Andrei Bukin	Marina Klimova (URS) Sergei Ponomarenko
1980	Lake Placid, USA	Natalia Linichuk (URS) Gennadi Karponosov	Krisztina Regoczy (HUN) Andras Sallay	Irina Moiseeva (URS) Andrei Minenkov
1976	Innsbruck, AUT	Ludmila Pakhomova (URS) Aleksandr Gorshkov	Irina Moiseeva (URS) Andrei Minenkov	Colleen O'Connor (USA) Jim Millns

	TEAM EVENT				
		GOLD	SILVER	BRONZE	
2014	Sochi, RUS	Russia (75)	Canada (65)	United States (60)	



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES | U.S. FINISHERS

		LADIES	;	
2014	Gracie Gold (4) 205.53	Ashley Wagner (7) 193.20	Polina Edmunds (9) 183.25	
2010	Mirai Nagasu (4) 190.15	Rachael Flatt (7) 182.49	7	
2006	Sasha Cohen (2) 183.36	Kimmie Meissner (6) 165.71	Emily Hughes (7) 160.87	
2002	Sarah Hughes (1)	Michelle Kwan (3)	Sasha Cohen (4)	
1998	Tara Lipinski (1)	Michelle Kwan (2)	Nicole Bobek (17)	
1994	Nancy Kerrigan (2)	Tonya Harding (8)		
1992	Kristi Yamaguchi (1)	Nancy Kerrigan (3)	Tonya Harding (4)	
1988	Debi Thomas (3)	Jill Trenary (4)	Caryn Kadavy (WD)	
1984	Rosalynn Sumners (2)	Tiffany Chin (4)	Elaine Zayak (6)	
1980	Linda Fratianne (2)	Lisa-Marie Allen (5)	Sandy Lenz (9)	
1976	Dorothy Hamill (1)	Wendy Burge (6)	Linda Fratianne (8)	
1972	Janet Lynn (3)	Julie Lynn Holmes (4)	Suna Murray (12)	
1968	Peggy Fleming (1)	Albertina Noyes (4)	Janet Lynn (9)	
1964	Peggy Fleming (6)	Christine Haigler (7)	Albertina Noyes (8)	
1960	Carol Heiss (1)	Barbara Roles (3)	Laurence Owen (6)	
1956	Tenley Albright (1)	Carol Heiss (2)	Catherine Louise Machado (8)	
1952	Tenley Albright (2)	Sonya Klopfer (4)	Virginia Baxter (5)	
1948	Yvonne Sherman (6)	Gretchen Merill (8)	Eileen Seigh (11)	
1936	Maribel Vinson (5)	Audrey Peppe (12)	Louise Weigel (21)	Estelle Weigel (22)
1932	Maribel Vinson (3)	Margaret Bennett (11)	Suzanne Davis (12)	Louise Weigel (14)
1928	Beatrix Loughran (3)	Maribel Vinson (4)	Theresa Weld Blanchard (10)	
1924	Beatrix Loughran (2)	Theresa Weld Blanchard (4)		
1920	Theresa Weld (3)			
1908	none			
		MEN		
2014	Jason Brown (9) 238.37	Jeremy Abbott (12) 232.70		
2010	Evan Lysacek (1) 257.67	Johnny Weir (6) 238.87	Jeremy Abbott (9) 218.96	
2006	Evan Lysacek (4) 220.13	Johnny Weir (5) 216.63	Matt Savoie (7) 206.67	
2002	Timothy Goebel (3)	Todd Eldredge (6)	Michael Weiss (7)	
1998	Todd Eldredge (4)	Michael Weiss (7)		
1994	Brian Boitano (6)	Scott Davis (8)		
1992	Paul Wylie (2)	Christopher Bowman (4)	Todd Eldredge (10)	
1988	Brian Boitano (1)	Christopher Bowman (7)	Paul Wylie (10)	
1984	Scott Hamilton (1)	Brian Boitano (5)	Mark Cockerell (13)	
1980	Charles Tickner (3)	David Santee (4)	Scott Hamilton (5)	
1976				
1972	David Santee (6)	Terry Kubicka (7)		
	David Santee (6) Kenneth Shelley (4)	Terry Kubicka (7) John Misha Petkevich (5)	Gordon McKellen, Jr. (10)	
1968			Gordon McKellen, Jr. (10) John Misha Petkevich (6)	
<u> </u>	Kenneth Shelley (4)	John Misha Petkevich (5)		
1968	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5)	John Misha Petkevich (6)	
1968 1964	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2) Scott Allen (3)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5) Thomas Litz (6)	John Misha Petkevich (6) Monty Hoyt (10)	
1968 1964 1960	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2) Scott Allen (3) David Jenkins (1)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5) Thomas Litz (6) Tim Brown (5)	John Misha Petkevich (6) Monty Hoyt (10) Robert Brewer (7)	
1968 1964 1960 1956	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2) Scott Allen (3) David Jenkins (1) Hayes Jenkins (1)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5) Thomas Litz (6) Tim Brown (5) Ronald Robertson (2)	John Misha Petkevich (6) Monty Hoyt (10) Robert Brewer (7) David Jenkins (3)	
1968 1964 1960 1956 1952	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2) Scott Allen (3) David Jenkins (1) Hayes Jenkins (1) Richard Button (1)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5) Thomas Litz (6) Tim Brown (5) Ronald Robertson (2) James Grogan (3)	John Misha Petkevich (6) Monty Hoyt (10) Robert Brewer (7) David Jenkins (3) Hayes Jenkins (4)	
1968 1964 1960 1956 1952 1948	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2) Scott Allen (3) David Jenkins (1) Hayes Jenkins (1) Richard Button (1) Richard Button (1)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5) Thomas Litz (6) Tim Brown (5) Ronald Robertson (2) James Grogan (3) John Lettengarver (4)	John Misha Petkevich (6) Monty Hoyt (10) Robert Brewer (7) David Jenkins (3) Hayes Jenkins (4) James Grogan (6)	William Nagel (11)
1968 1964 1960 1956 1952 1948 1936	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2) Scott Allen (3) David Jenkins (1) Hayes Jenkins (1) Richard Button (1) Richard Button (1) Robin Lee (12)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5) Thomas Litz (6) Tim Brown (5) Ronald Robertson (2) James Grogan (3) John Lettengarver (4) Erie Reiter (13)	John Misha Petkevich (6) Monty Hoyt (10) Robert Brewer (7) David Jenkins (3) Hayes Jenkins (4) James Grogan (6) George Hill (22)	William Nagel (11)
1968 1964 1960 1956 1952 1948 1936 1932	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2) Scott Allen (3) David Jenkins (1) Hayes Jenkins (1) Richard Button (1) Robin Lee (12) Roger Turner (6)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5) Thomas Litz (6) Tim Brown (5) Ronald Robertson (2) James Grogan (3) John Lettengarver (4) Erie Reiter (13) James Madden (7)	John Misha Petkevich (6) Monty Hoyt (10) Robert Brewer (7) David Jenkins (3) Hayes Jenkins (4) James Grogan (6) George Hill (22) Gail Borden (8)	William Nagel (11)
1968 1964 1960 1956 1952 1948 1936 1932 1928	Kenneth Shelley (4) Tim Wood (2) Scott Allen (3) David Jenkins (1) Hayes Jenkins (1) Richard Button (1) Richard Button (1) Robin Lee (12) Roger Turner (6) Roger Turner (10)	John Misha Petkevich (5) Gary Visconti (5) Thomas Litz (6) Tim Brown (5) Ronald Robertson (2) James Grogan (3) John Lettengarver (4) Erie Reiter (13) James Madden (7)	John Misha Petkevich (6) Monty Hoyt (10) Robert Brewer (7) David Jenkins (3) Hayes Jenkins (4) James Grogan (6) George Hill (22) Gail Borden (8)	William Nagel (11)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES | U.S. FINISHERS

		PAIRS	
2014	Marissa Castelli (9) 187.82 Simon Shnapir	Felicia Zhang (12) 167.21 Nathan Bartholomay	
2010	Amanda Evora (10) 171.92 Mark Ladwig	Caydee Denney (13) 158.33 Jeremy Barrett	
2006	Rena Inoue (7) 175.01 John Baldwin	Marcy Hinzmann (13) 147.05 Aaron Parchem	
2002	Kyoko Ina (5) John Zimmerman	Tiffany Scott (13) Philip Dulebohn	
1998	Kyoko Ina (4) Jason Dungjen	Jenni Meno (8) Todd Sand	
1994	Jenni Meno (5) Todd Sand	Kyoko Ina (9) Jason Dungjen	Karen Courtland (14) Todd Reynolds
1992	Natasha Kuchiki (6) Todd Sand	Calla Urbanski (10) Rocky Marval	Jenni Meno (11) Scott Wendland
1988	Jill Watson (3) Peter Oppegard	Gillian Wachsman (5) Todd Waggoner	Natalie Seybold (10) Wayne Seybold
1984	Caitlin Carruthers (2) Peter Carruthers	Jill Watson (6) Burt Lancon	Lea Ann Miller (10) William Fauver
1980	Caitlin Carruthers (5) Peter Carruthers	Sheryl Franks (7) Michael Botticelli	Tai Babilonia (WD) Randy Gardner
1976	Tai Babilonia (5) Randy Gardner	Alice Cook (12) William Fauver	
1972	JoJo Starbuck (4) Kenneth Shelley	Melissa Militano (7) Mark Militano	Barbara Brown (12) Douglas Berndt
1968	Cynthia Kauffman (6) Ronald Kauffman	Sandi Sweitzer (7) Roy Wagelein	JoJo Starbuck (13) Kenneth Shelley
1964	Vivian Joseph (3) Ronald Joseph	Judianne Fotheringill (7) Jerry Fotheringill	Cynthia Kauffman (8) Ronald Kauffman
1960	Nancy Ludington (3) Ronald Ludington	Maribel Owen (10) Dudley Richards	Ila Ray Hadley (11) Ray Hadley
1956	Carole Anne Ormaca (5) Robin Greiner	Lucille Mary Ash (7) Sully Kothman	
1952	Karol Kennedy (2) Peter Kennedy	Janet Gerhauser (6) John Nightingale	
1948	Yvonne Sherman (4) Robert Swenning	Karol Kennedy (6) Peter Kennedy	
1936	Maribel Vinson (5) George Hill	Grace Madden (11) James Madden	
1932	Beatrix Loughran (2) Sherwin Badger	Gertrude Meredith (7) Joseph Savage	
1928	Beatrix Loughran (4) Sherwin Badger	Theresa Weld Blanchard (9) Nathaniel Niles	
1924	Theresa Weld Blanchard (6) Nathaniel Niles		
1920	Theresa Weld (4) Nathaniel Niles		
1908	none		



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE

OLYMPIC WINTER GAMES | U.S. FINISHERS

		ICE DANCE	
2014	Meryl Davis (1) 195.52 Charlie White	Madison Chock (8) 164.64 Evan Bates	Maia Shibutani (9) 155.17 Alex Shibutani
2010	Meryl Davis (2) 215.74 Charlie White	Tanith Belbin (4) 203.07 Ben Agosto	Emily Samuelson (11) 174.30 Evan Bates
2006	Tanith Belbin (2) 196.06 Ben Agosto	Melissa Gregory (14) 159.15 Denis Petukhov	Jamie Silverstein (16) 150.40 Ryan O'Meara
2002	Naomi Lang (11) Peter Tchernyshev	Beata Handra (23) Charles Sinek	
1998	Elizabeth Punsalan (7) Jerod Swallow	Jessica Joseph (21) Charles Butler	
1994	Elizabeth Punsalan (15) Jerod Swallow		
1992	April Sargent (11) Russ Witherby	Rachel Mayer (15) Peter Breen	
1988	Suzanne Semanick (6) Scott Gregory	Susan Wynne (11) Joseph Druar	
1984	Judy Blumberg (4) Michael Seibert	Carol Fox (5) Richard Dalley	Elisa Spitz (10) Scott Gregory
1980	Judy Blumberg (7) Michael Seibert	Stacey Smith (9) John Summers	
1976	Colleen O'Connor (3) Jim Millns	Judi Genovesi (15) Kent Weigle	Susan Kelley (17) Andrew Stroukoff

TEAM EVENT				
	LADIES	MEN	pairs	ice dance
2014	Ashley Wagner (SP)	Jeremy Abbott (SP)	Marissa Castelli/	Meryl Davis/
	Gracie Gold (FS)	Jason Brown (FS)	Simon Shnapir	Charlie White (3)



OLYMPIC MEDIA GUIDE



20 First Street Colorado Springs, CO 80906 719.635.5200 www.usfigureskating.org